
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency orders, the 
City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety of ways:  Via 
computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, email and/or text!  
See details on page 4. 

 
Vestavia Hills 

City Council Agenda 
September 26, 2022 

6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order      

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Huey Davis, Vestavia Hills Chaplain    

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Approval Of The Agenda 

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition 

7. Proclamation – Down Syndrome Awareness Month – October 2022 

8. City Manager’s Report 

9. Councilors’ Reports 

10. Financial Reports – Zachary Clifton, Deputy Finance Director 

11. Approval Of Minutes – September 12, 2022 (Work Session) and September 12, 2022 

(Regular Meeting)  

Old Business 

12. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5406 – A Resolution Dedicating The Existing 

Vestlake Roads (Defined Herein) To The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

13. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5407 – A Resolution Dedicating Corporate Woods 

Drive (Defined Herein) To The City Of Vestavia Hills 

14. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3111 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 And 3524 

Ridgedale Drive; Lots 27 And 33, Rocky Ridge Estates; Patricia Lucas, John And Helen 

White, Owner(s) 

15. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3112 – Rezoning – 3516 and 3524 Ridgedale Drive; 

Lots 27 and 33, Rocky Ridge Estates; Rezone from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 

R-1; Patricia Lucas and John & Helen White, Owner(s) 

16. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3113 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2632 Rillwood 

Road; Lot 15, Altadena Park; Jason Womack, Owner(s) 



17. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3114 – Rezoning – 2632 Rillwood Road; Lot 15, 

Altadena Park; Rezone From Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Jason Womack, 

Owner(s) 

18. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3115 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2644 Yorkmont 

Drive; Lot 16, Chimney Hills; Daniel And Fay Cambron, Owner(s) 

19. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3116 – Rezoning – 2644 Yorkmont Drive; Lot 16, 

Chimney Hills; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Daniel And 

Fay Cambron, Owner(s) 

20. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3121 – Rezoning – 2245 And 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd; 

Rezone From Jefferson County R-T, R-4, And R-2 To Vestavia Hills R-9 For Construction 

Of 25 Townhomes; Taylor Burton And Alicia And Donald Huey (Townes Development 

Group, LLP), Owner(s) 

21. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3122 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2245 & 2249 

Blue Ridge Blvd; Taylor Burton And Donald & Alicia Huey, Owner(s) 

22. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3123 – Third Amendment To The Patchwork Farms 

Planned Unit Development For The Purpose Of Increasing The Number Of Attached 

Dwelling To Maximum Of 37 Units; Christopher, LLC, Owner(s) 

New Business 

23. Resolution Number 5412 – A Resolution Reappointing A Member To The Design Review 

Board 

24. Resolution Number 5413 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 

Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 

Surplus Property 

25. Ordinance Number 3126 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Regional Training Center Agreement With The Alabama Fire 

College And Personnel Standards Commission, The Cities Of Hoover, Mountain Brook, 

And Homewood And The Rocky Ridge Fire Department To Provide Classroom Space And 

Associated Facilities For Training Use 

26. Ordinance Number 3127 – An Ordinance Accepting A Bid For Mowing Of Rights-Of-

Way In The City Of Vestavia Hills And Executing A Contract Pursuant To Said Bid 

27. Ordinance Number 3128 – An Ordinance Accepting A Bid For Landscaping Maintenance 

In The City Of Vestavia Hills And Executing A Contract Pursuant To Said Bid  

28. Ordinance Number 3129 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Take All Actions Necessary To Settle A Workman’s Compensation Claim 

New Business Requesting Unanimous Consent) 



First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 

29. Ordinance Number 3130 – An Ordinance Approving The Terms, Provisions, Conditions 

And Substance Of Six (6) Different Template Contracts To Be Executed And Delivered 

By Citizens Who Rent Facilities In The New Civic Center And Vendors And To Authorize 

The City Manager And Director Of Parks And Leisure Services To Sign The Said Template 

Contracts For And On Behalf Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

30. Citizens Comments   

31. Time Of Adjournment          

  



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 
Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 
 
COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5539517181. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak 
during time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself 
by toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your 
name and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 
 
Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  

 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)  
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)  
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you 

may use to raise a virtual hand  
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window  
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active 

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants 
 
TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 
 
To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 
 
TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 
 
If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 
 
Zoom meetings may be recorded. By participating in the meeting, you are consenting to be recorded.  Zoom-bombing 
is a cyber-crime and is punishable by law. In the event of an attendee intruding into any City of Vestavia Hills Zoom 
meeting, the online broadcast will be ended immediately. Council and/or board members may be readmitted but online 
attendees will not. Although Zoom-bombing is not a frequent occurrence, those wishing to make public comment 
should attend the meeting in person. 



 

 

WHEREAS,  Down syndrome  is the most frequently occurring chromosomal disorder and  is 
the  leading cause of  intellectual and developmental delay  in the United States; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,   approximately  one  in  every  700  children  are  born  with  Down  syndrome, 

representing  an  estimated  6,000  births  per  year  in  the  United  States  with 
approximately 85 of those annual births occurring here in Alabama; and  

 
WHEREAS,   possessing  a wide  range  of  abilities,  people with  Down  syndrome  are  active 

participants  in educational, occupational, social, and  recreational circles of our 
communities; and  

 
WHEREAS,  yet despite  significant  increases  in  lifespan  and  intellectual opportunities over 

the  past  decade,  there  is  still much work  to  be  done  regarding  the  rights  to 
equality,  inclusion education, medical care, research, employment and support 
for people with Down syndrome; and 

 
WHEREAS,   all citizens are encouraged to work together to celebrate the lives of individuals 

with Down syndrome, and remember to appreciate and regard every individual 
with dignity as a valued member of the community; and 

 
WHEREAS,   through public awareness,  the City of Vestavia Hills  supports  the  initiatives of 

organizations working  to  ensure  people with Down  syndrome  have  adequate 
services, are valued by society, and can lead fulfilling and productive lives in our 
community. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Ashley C. Curry, by virtue of the authority vested in me as 

Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills in the State of Alabama, do hereby proclaim 
October 2022 as  

 
DOWN SYNDROME AWARENESS MONTH 
 
in the City of Vestavia Hills in support of individuals with Down syndrome, as well 
as their families, advocates, researchers, and medical professionals.  I encourage 
all citizens to work together to promote respect and inclusion of individuals with 
Down syndrome and to celebrate their accomplishments and contributions. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,  I  have  hereunto 
set my  hand  and  caused  the  Seal  of  the 
City of Vestavia Hills to be affixed this the 
26th day of September 2022. 
 



 

 

 
__________________________________
______Ashley C. Curry, Mayor 



Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 

 
 The City Council met in special work session on this date following posting/publication as 
required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work session to order and the clerk checked the 
roll: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ashley C. Curry, Mayor  

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
     Paul Head, Councilor  
     George Pierce, Councilor* 
      *arrived at 5:05 PM 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Jeff Downes, City Manager 
     Patrick Boone, City Attorney  
     Umang Patel, Acting City Clerk/Court Director  
     Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
     Ryan Farrell, Deputy Fire Chief 
     Tommy Hale, Deputy Fire Chief 
     Steven Michael, Lieutenant   
      
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
 The Mayor called the Work Session to order and indicated a need for Executive Session.  
He opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to enter executive session for discussion of possible sale/purchase of real 

estate and pending/existing litigation was made by Mrs. Cook and seconded by Mr. 
Head.  Mayor Curry asked the City Attorney if the Council could go into executive 
session for such purposes. Mr. Boone said this is allowed under State law.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes  
   Mayor Curry – yes  
        Motion carried. 
 
 At 5:02 p.m. the Council exited the chamber and entered into executive session. At 5:41 
p.m. the Council re-entered the chambers and the Mayor called the meeting back to order.  
 



Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

 There being no further business, Mrs. Cook made the motion to adjourn.  The Work Session 
adjourned at 5:44. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Umang Patel 
Acting City Clerk 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

CITY COUNCIL 

MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2022 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  A number of staff and members of 
the general public also attended virtually, via Zoom.com, following publication pursuant to 
Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  

MEMBERS ABSENT: 

OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: 

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
Paul Head, Councilor 
George Pierce, Councilor 

Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem  

Jeff Downes, City Manager 
Patrick Boone, City Attorney 
Umang Patel, Acting Clerk/Court Director 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Jason Hardin, Deputy Police Chief 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
Zach Clifton, Deputy Finance Director 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Ryan Farrell, Deputy Fire Chief* 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
Jamie Lee, Director of Parks and Leisure Services 
Keith Blanton, Building Official* 

*present virtually via Zoom or telephone

Huey Davis, a Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

The Mayor asked for the approval of the agenda.  He opened the floor for a motion.   



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 2 
 

MOTION  Motion to approve the agenda presented was made by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 
Mr. Head.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   
Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mayor Curry commended the Police and Fire Department for successfully hosting the 
9/11 Ceremony. The Ceremony is a joint event with Homewood and Mountain Brook. 
The host city rotates between the three Cities   

 Mrs. Cook stated she regretted not being there for the Patriot ceremony. Mrs. Cook stated 
she did have the opportunity to be with Troop 76, of which she is affiliated with, and 
wanted to thank them. 

 Mr. Head stated the Parks and Recreations Board will have their regular scheduled 
meeting on September 20, 2022 at 7:30 am in the Executive Conference Room.  

 Mr. Pierce recognized Tyler Kime and Jamie Pursell who were in attendance representing 
the Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce Board. Mr. Pierce also echoed Mayor Curry’s 
comments regarding the 9/11 Ceremony.  Mr. Pierce also praised Mr. Williams, the guest 
speaker at the ceremony.  

 
 

PROCLAMATION – CONSTITUTION WEEK 
 

Mayor Curry presented a proclamation designating the week of September 17-23, 2022 
as “Constitution Week.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and the Mayor presented it to 
Maryann Lambert of the Cahawba Chapter and Cherry Fishburne the of Princess Sejoy Chapter.   

 
 

PROCLAMATION – ALOPECIA AREATA AWARENESS MONTH 
 

Mayor Curry presented a proclamation designating the month of September 2022 as 
“Alopecia Areata Awareness Month.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation aloud and the Mayor 
presented it to Sandey Green and Ki Edwards representatives from the “Don’t Stare!  Just Ask? 
#Alopecia” Awareness Group.   
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes discussed the Pine Ridge Project, a project by the State of Alabama’s Mine 
Reclamation Division within Liberty Park which sits adjacent to the Sicard Hallow 
Athletic Complex.  

o Mr. Downes stated they have a desire to begin construction later this year in the 
November timeframe. Mr. Downes displayed a map of the project area which 
entails property owned by the City of Vestavia Hills, Glenwood, and the Liberty 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 3 
 

Park Joint Venture. The project involves, with approval of all owners, reclamation 
of very dangerous high walls adjacent to the ball fields and parks. The project 
would take place over approximately five or six months. Mr. Downes stated a right 
of entry will be requested at a later date for the project to begin.   

o Mr. Downes stated there is an additional benefit to the City of Vestavia Hills with 
an area that has been master planned for a police and fire training facility once the 
land becomes buildable.  

o Mrs. Cook asked what the process of the project would be.  
o Conversation ensued regarding the process of the project which would include 

cutting and filling, planting pines and environmental safeguards to ensure 
sustainability of the nearby lake.  

o Mr. Downes stated there will be further discussion with more details at a later date.  
 Mr. Downes discussed the paving of areas of various Liberty Park roads that have been 

identified by a third-party consultant as needing to be paved. 
o  Phase 1 would consist of Lake Parkway which is scheduled to begin the week of 

September 21. Notice and communication regarding the paving will begin soon.  
o  Phase 2 would consist of Lake Colony Way and some cul-de-sacs.   

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mr. Pierce stated that he will be attending the monthly Vestavia Hills Chamber of 
Commerce luncheon tomorrow (September 13, 2022) at the Vestavia Hills Country Club. 
The speaker will be Pete Blank. Mr. Pierce also state he will be attending the monthly 
Chamber Board Meeting on Thursday (September 15, 2022) morning at 7:45 am in the 
Vestavia Hills Chamber of Commerce office.  

 
 

COMMUNITY SPACES UPDATE - TCU 
 
 Raynor Boles from TCU updated the City Council on the following Community Spaces 
projects: 

 Civics Center – Mr. Boles stated there has been a large delivery of furniture and cleaning 
crews began over the weekend. Mr. Boyles also stated that some interior concrete had to 
be ripped up but has since been replaced.  

 Mr. Boyles stated Keith Blanton, Mike Roy and Ryan Farrell have been on sight and been 
very helpful. The Civic Center will be completed in phases which will allow insurance to 
begin the coverage over various aspect of the building (furniture, HVAC, IT, etc). A 
temporary certificate of occupancy is expected to be granted in spaces as the phases are 
completed. Mr. Boles stated occupancy of staff into the building should begin within the 
next 10 to 14 days.  

 Mr. Boles stated there will be an outstanding punch list that will take longer than the next 
2 weeks and he understands a permeant certificate of occupancy will not be given until 
the punch list is complete.  

  Mrs. Cook asked when the walkway would be completed and when the permanent 
certificate of occupancy be granted   



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 4 
 

o Mr. Boles stated the façade of the walkway will start this week and continue into 
next week. There will be a temporary use of the walkway during that time. Mr. 
Boles stated he believed the permeant certificate of occupancy will be given in the 
next 2-3 weeks.  

o Mrs. Cook asked how long before the official opening of the Civic Center to the 
residents.  

o Mr. Downes stated while there is not an exact date there will be a grand opening 
prior to the first scheduled event which is set for October 13th.  

 Wald Park III – Mr. Boles stated the equipment and big trucks will be moving soon. There 
are in the process of pre-construction meetings regarding signage, access and the various 
ground rules. 

o Mrs. Cook asked what the time frame of completion is for Phase III?  
o Mr. Boles stated 8 months is the contractual timeframe but the key is to get the 

asphalt down prior to winter. 
 Crosshaven Drive – The road has been widened and traffic is flowing both ways. Mr. 

Boyles stated he can ensure they will be done with the City’s portion before the holiday 
season (Halloween). Entire eastern portion widening is almost completed. There has been 
a lot of coordination with property owners.  

o Mrs. Cook asked about an update regarding Jefferson County’s portion of the 
project.  

o  Mr. Boyles stated the Jefferson County’s portion is at a standstill due to AT&T 
and Spire conflicts but once the City of Vestavia Hills portion is completed those 
contractors will work with Jefferson County and assist in the remaining portion of 
the work.  

 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor stated that the approval of the minutes from the August 22 2022 (Regular 
Meeting) was needed and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve the minutes of the August 22 2022 (Regular Meeting) was made 

by Mrs. Cook and second was by Mr. Head.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3117 
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3117 – An Ordinance Approving And Adopting The 

Final 10% Of The Fiscal Year 2022 Budgets For The City Of Vestavia Hills  
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 5 
 

MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3117 was made by Mrs. Cook and seconded 
by Mr. Head. 

 
 Mr. Downes stated this is the approval of the final 10% of the budget which is the standard 
process with no changes to the budget.  
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. Roll call vote was 
as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3118 
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3118 – An Ordinance Approving And Adopting The 

General Fund Budget, A Special Revenue Fund Budget, A Capital Project 
Fund Budget And An Infrastructure And Community Spaces Project Fund 
Budget For The City Of Vestavia Hills For The Period Beginning October 1, 
2022 Until September 30, 2023 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3118 was made by Mrs. Cook and seconded 

by Mr. Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated the proposed budget has been discussed at prior Council Meetings 
along with previous work sessions and is ready for the Council’s consideration. 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. Roll call vote was 
as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5405 
 
Resolution Number 5405 – A Resolution Authorizing An Increase In Salary And Wages 

And Adoption Of New Pay Plans For Employees 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5405 was made by Mrs. Cook and 

seconded by Mr. Head. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 6 
 

 Mr. Downes stated the budget that was just passed includes the necessary funding. This 
will resolution will be sent to the Jefferson County Personnel Board for approval at their next 
scheduled meeting.  
 

There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
Roll call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3120 
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3120 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And 

City Manager To Accept A Proposal For Redesign And Updated 
Construction Plans For The Proposed Pedestrian Bridge Over US-31 And To 
Accept Funding For Said Redesign From ALDOT With An 80/20 Local 
Match 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3120 was made by Mrs. Cook and seconded 

by Mr. Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated this ordinance is to get approval for the construction design to redesign 
within constraints of the pedestrian bridge. The last design was determined as not feasible. There 
is a new plan that has been approved and the necessary funds need to be approved, $256,000. 
Federal funding was granted 80/20 funding. The earlier approved budget includes the City of 
Vestavia Hills portion of the project, $51,000.  
 

Conversation ensued regarding the history of the pedestrian bridge project.  
 

Mrs. Cook asked what changes were made from the original design.  
 

Matt Williams from Gresham Smith stated the new design would call for a pre-fabricated 
steel construction bridge. Mr. Williams also stated all approvals are expected to take 12 months 
which would allow for construction to begin in September of 2023.  
 

Mrs. Cook stated the various benefits the pedestrian bridge would provide for residents 
and also asked there be additional architectural features be included such as signage, lighting and 
landscaping to ensure the City of Vestavia Hills makes the most of the project.  
 

Dan Barrette (3308 Shallowford Circle) asked how much money has gone into this project. 
 

Mr. Downes stated the project dates back to Mayor McCallum’s term as Mayor and 
estimated the total expenditure design to be $48,000.  
 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 7 
 

The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. Roll call vote was 
as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5409 
 
Resolution Number 5409 – A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus 

And Authorizing The City Manager To See/Dispose Of Said Property 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5409 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 

Mr. Downes stated this is primarily public services equipment. With the approval of the 
new public services facility this would allow to clean up under utilized items along with two 
vehicles scheduled for replacement.  

 
There being no one to further address the Council the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 

call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
        motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5404 
 
Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5404 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License 

For CEC Entertainment LLC D/B/A Chuck E. Cheeses; 500 Olde Towne 
Road; Requesting An 040-Retail Beer (On And Off Premises) And 060-Retail 
Table Wine (On Or Off Premises); David A. Deck, Rodolfo Rodriguez, Jr., 
And David McKillips, Executives 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5404 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 

Mr. Downes explained that this is a request for the transfer of an alcohol license at Chuck 
E. Cheese. 
 

Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees to lessen the likelihood of sales to minors. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 8 
 

Sherrie Gates, a represent from Chuck E. Cheese, was present and stated license are 
scanned into an automated machine for every individual that purchases alcohol. 

 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
Mrs. Bo Davis (1200 Wickford Road) and John White (1201 Glenn Green Road) spoke 

in opposition of resolution 5404 and expressed concerns regarding violence related crimes with 
alcohol being served around children.  

 
Conversation ensued. 
 
Chief Rary stated there are very few alcohol related calls from Chuck E. Cheese for the 

Police department. Chief Rary also stated Check E. Cheese does not possess any additional issues 
than any other similarly situated business.  

 
Mrs. Cook clarified this is a renewal of the alcohol license and not a newly requested 

license. Mrs. Cook also stated the City Council has to be careful about making distinctions about 
business that are not per our ordinance which could lead to discrimination towards various 
business. 

 
There being no one to further address the Council the Mayor closed the public hearing 

and called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5408 
 
Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5408 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License 

For Davenports Pizza Palace D/B/A Davenports Pizza Vestavia Inc; 700 
Montgomery Highway, Suite 193; Requesting An 040-Retail Beer (On And 
Off Premises) And 060-Retail Table Wine (On Or Off Premises); Tara 
Pridgen Davis, Yates Patrick Norris And Amanda Pridgen Thames, 
Executives 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5408 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 

Mr. Downes explained that this is a request for a beer and wine license for a new 
restaurant. 

 
Amanda Thames was present in regard to the request. 
 
Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees to lessen the likelihood of sales to minors. 
 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 9 
 

Ms. Amanda Thames explained they are a licensed responsible vendor. This consists of 
extensive training for the mangers who then in turn train the remaining staff.   

 
Mayor Curry asked when is the expected opening date.  
 
Ms. Thames’ stated there have been delays from vendors but the plan is to open this 

month.  
 
Mrs. Cook asked if there would will be arcade games.  
 
Ms. Thames stated there would be arcade games and they would not be able to open 

without it.  
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 

the Council the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5410 
 
Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5410 – A Resolution Approving Alcohol License For 

Waldos Stations No 5 LLC D/B/A Waldos Chicken And Beer; John Michael 
Bodnar, Artur John Ulm Ii, Mark Titus Waldo, Et Al, Executives 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5410 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 

Mr. Downes explained that this is a request for a beer and wine license for a new 
restaurant. 

 
Casey Atherton was present in regard to the request. 
 
Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees to lessen the likelihood of sales to minors. 
 
 Mr. Atherton explained they are fully compliant with the Alabama Responsible Vendors 

Program. The bar manager also trains every employee one on one.  
 
The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to further address 

the Council the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 10 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5411 
 
Resolution Number 5411 - A Resolution Approving Financing Terms For City Vehicles 

And/Or Equipment Through Robertson Banking 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5411 was by Mrs. Cook and seconded by 

Mr. Head.  
 

Mr. Downes explained in the capital budget portion of the earlier approved budget incudes 
a number of vehicles set to be purchased. This would allow Melvin Turner to go to the market 
place and ascertain the best loans. The selected terms are three years at a 2.51% interest rate and   
five years for 2.57% interest rate.   

 
There being no one to further address the Council the Mayor called for the question.  Roll 

call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook– yes   Mr. Head– yes   

Mr. Pierce – yes  Mayor Curry – yes 
     motion carried. 

 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5406 – A Resolution Dedicating The Existing 
Vestlake Roads (Defined Herein) To The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

 Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5407 – A Resolution Dedicating Corporate Woods 
Drive (Defined Herein) To The City Of Vestavia Hills 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3111 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 3516 And 3524 
Ridgedale Drive; Lots 27 And 33, Rocky Ridge Estates; Patricia Lucas, John And Helen 
White, Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3112 – Rezoning – 3524 and 3516 Ridgedale Drive; 
Lots 27 and 33, Rocky Ridge Estates; Rezone from Jefferson County E-2 to Vestavia Hills 
R-1; Patricia Lucas and John & Helen White, Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3113 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2632 Rillwood 
Road; Lot 15, Altadena Park; Jason Womack, Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3114 – Rezoning – 2632 Rillwood Road; Lot 15, 
Altadena Park; Rezone From Jefferson County E-1 To Vestavia Hills E-2; Jason Womack, 
Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3115 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2644 Yorkmont 
Drive; Lot 16, Chimney Hills; Daniel And Fay Cambron, Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3116 – Rezoning – 2644 Yorkmont Drive; Lot 16, 
Chimney Hills; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 To Vestavia Hills R-2; Daniel And Fay 
Cambron, Owner(s) 



City Council Minutes 
September 12, 2022 

Page 11 
 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3121 – Rezoning – 2245 And 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd; 
Rezone From Jefferson County R-T, R-4, And R-2 To Vestavia Hills R-9 For Construction 
Of 25 Townhomes; Taylor Burton And Alicia And Donald Huey (Townes Development 
Group, LLP), Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3122 – Annexation – 90 Day Final – 2245 & 2249 
Blue Ridge Blvd; Taylor Burton And Donald & Alicia Huey, Owner(s) 

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3123 – Third Amendment To The Patchwork Farms 
Planned Unit Development For The Purpose Of Increasing The Number Of Attached 
Dwelling To Maximum Of 37 Units; Christopher, LLC, Owner(s) 

 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Danny Barrett (3308 Shallowford Circle) and Tina Richards (3366 Shallowford Circle) 
spoke regarding the threat of potentially dangerous pine trees and flooding issues within the 
Shallowford area.  
 

Conversation ensued discussing the history of the area and the various jurisdictional 
issues. 
 

Mr. Downes stated the City of Vestavia Hills is in the process of studying the 
jurisdictional issues to determine ownership and responsibility of care over the area.  
  

Mrs. Cook stated these were very complicated questions and issues that would be better 
be address by City of Vestavia Hills staff at a later date.  
 
 
 At 7:30 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 7:31 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 1 

 

48942022 v2 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5406 
 

A RESOLUTION DEDICATING THE EXISTING VESTLAKE ROADS 
(DEFINED HEREIN) TO THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  

 
 WHEREAS, on April 15, 1985, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

(the “City”) approved and adopted Ordinance Number 751, which in substance, and in very general 

terms, provides that an acceptance of a dedication can only be accomplished by the approval by 

the City Council of a formal resolution adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special 

meeting called for that specific purpose and that the developer who offers dedication of land for 

public streets and roads must execute and deliver an agreement guarantying that all improvements 

for construction of public streets and roads will meet city requirements; and 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance Number 751 provides, among other things as follows: 

“The City shall not accept the dedication until such time as every lot in the 

subdivision as shown on the plat has been developed with the construction of a 

home or other building;” and 

 WHEREAS, Vestlake Communities Properties Owners’ Association, Inc., an Alabama 

nonprofit corporation (the “Association”) is the owner of the roads listed on Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto and depicted on Exhibit “B” attached hereto (collectively, the “Existing Vestlake Roads”) 

located within the municipal city limits of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Association has established a reserve fund for the repair and maintenance 

of the Existing Vestlake Roads, the balance of which, as of December 31, 2021, was $2,660,899.00 

(the “Road Reserve Funds”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Association has offered to the City dedication of the Existing Vestlake 

Roads  (including all improvements within the right-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads other 

than pedestrian ways (sidewalks/multi-use trails)) as a public road in its current condition, AS IS 

WHERE IS, in order that (i) the City, through its Public Service department, will be responsible 

for the maintenance and repair of the Existing Vestlake Roads in perpetuity; (ii) the Existing 

Vestlake Roads will become subject to the jurisdiction of the Vestavia Hills Police Department; 

and (iii) the Existing Vestlake Roads will become exempt from all ad valorem taxes as the same 

will be owned in fee simple by the City upon completion of the dedication process; and 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 2 

 

48942022 v2 

WHEREAS, as a condition to accepting the Existing Vestlake Roads as public roads in 

their current condition, AS IS WHERE IS, the City requires that the Road Reserve Funds in the 

amount of $2,660,899.00 be transferred to the City in order to offset the City’s cost in performing 

any and all work that may be required to bring the Existing Vestlake Roads into compliance with 

the City’s specifications for public roads and the City’s cost of maintaining and repairing the 

Existing Vestlake Roads in perpetuity; 

WHEREAS, subject to the transfer of the Road Reserve Funds to the City, the City has 

agreed to accept dedication of the Existing Vestlake Roads subject to the terms, provisions and 

conditions of that certain the Existing Vestlake Roads Maintenance Agreement (the “Maintenance 

Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit “C” between the City and the Association which sets forth, 

among other things, (i) the City’s  responsibilities for maintaining and repairing the rights-of way 

of the Existing Vestlake Roads and certain improvements located within such rights-of-way; and 

(ii) the Association’s responsibilities for maintaining and repairing certain other improvements 

located within such rights-of-way, all as is more particularly set forth in the Maintenance 

Agreement; said Maintenance Agreement is incorporated into this Resolution Number 5406 by 

reference as though set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that the acceptance of the offer of dedication 

of the Existing Vestlake Roads by the Association, subject to the terms, provisions and conditions 

of the Maintenance Agreement, will provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the 

prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the inhabitants of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Existing Vestlake Roads are hereby dedicated; and 

2. Said dedication is subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the Maintenance 

Agreements; and 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 3 

 

48942022 v2 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
       
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 4 

 

48942022 v2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

EXISTING VESTLAKE ROADS  
 

1. Lake Run Drive 
2. Lake Run Circle 
3. Vestview Drive 
4. Vestview Circle 
5. Vestview Lane 
6. Park Crest Road   
7. Park Crest Circle    
8. Park Hill Drive    
9. Park Hill Circle    
10. Park Ridge Circle    
11. Park View Circle    
12. Park Lake Circle    
13. Lake Vista Circle 
14. Vestlake Hollow Circle   
15. Lake Colony 
16. Lake Colony Drive    
17. Lake Colony Trail    
18. Lake Colony Circle    
19. Lake Colony Pointe    
20. Lake Colony Lane 
21. Lake Colony Run   
22. Lake Colony Way 
23. Alston Park Drive 
24. Alston Way 
25. Alston Lane 
26. Alston Trail 
27. Alston Place 
28. Alston Court 
29. Reynolds Lane   
30. Reynolds Way      
31. Reynolds Place    
32. Reynolds Circle  
33. Reynolds Crest    
34. Reynolds Cove    
35. Reynolds Trail 

 

36. Galen Court 
37. Galen Cove   
38. Galen Way   
39. Paxton Place 
40. Paxton Way 
41. Paxton Park 
42. Lambert Terrace 
43. Lambert Cove   
44. Lambert Trail 
45. Boulder Lake Circle 
46. Boulder Lake Drive 
47. Boulder Lake Way 
48. Boulder Lake Lane 
49. Boulder Lake Court 
50. Marden Drive 
51. Marden Way 
52. Ternview Road 
53. Hamlin Place 
54. Hampden Place Court 
55. Hampden Place Circle 
56. Vestlake Cove Drive 
57. Landon Cove 
58. Landon Court 
59. Vestlake Ridge Drive 
60. Vestlake Ridge Way 
61. Vestlake Ridge Alley 
62. Liberty Park Lane 
63. Heritage Hills Way 
64. Provence Drive 
65. Provence Circle 
66. Jackson Loop 
67. Reflection Cove 
68. Reflection Drive 
69. Reflection Alley 
70. Stonecrest Court 
71. Stonecrest Alley 
72. Enclave Court 

 

 

 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 5 

 

48942022 v2 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DEPICTION OF EXISTING VESTLAKE ROADS  
 

 
[See attached] 

 



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 6 

 

48942022 v2 

 



48942022 v2 

EXHIBIT “C” 

Existing Vestlake Roads Maintenance Agreement  

Notwithstanding any provision in the Resolution to which this Exhibit “C” is attached to the contrary, the 
City has agreed to accept dedication of the Existing Vestlake Roads and the maintenance and repair of only 
those improvements set forth in Section I below which are located within the rights-of-way of the Existing 
Vestlake Roads.  The Association shall remain solely responsible for those improvements located within 
the rights-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads that are set forth in Section II below.  Capitalized terms 
used in this Exhibit “C” without definition shall have the meanings set forth in the Resolution to which this 
Exhibit “C” is attached. 

I. City’s Responsibilities and Agreements: 

1. Maintenance and Repair.  The City, through its Public Services/Public Works Department, 
shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the rights-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads and the 
following improvements located within such rights-of-way: 

a. Roads:  Roadway surfaces and roadbed repairs, including the repair of all potholes and 
periodic resurfacing/paving (note: the City’s road paving needs are evaluated annually);  

b. Curb and Gutter:  Curb and gutter; drainage inlet tops, grates, and covers; manhole and 
other utility covers; 

c. Traffic Control:  Striping, markings, signals, traffic control signage, and associated items 
serving side road connections; and 

d. Drainage:  All drainage systems, including but not limited to drainage inlets, catch basins, 
manholes, storm drain pipe and drainage swales. 

The timing of such maintenance and repair shall be at the direction and discretion of the City 
Manager/City Engineer.  The Association and residents of Vestlake Village are directed to the City’s 
website (www.vhal.org/departments/public-services/public-works.org) for information regarding City 
owned roads. 

2. Utilities.  The City will review applications for permits and, if approved, will direct and 
inspect all utilities to be placed, repaired, or otherwise altered within the rights-of-way of the Existing 
Vestlake Roads in accordance with City requirements and regulations. 

3. Roadside Hazard Determination. The City has review and permitting authority for any 
encroachments of the Existing Vestlake Roads that could be considered a safety hazard per ALDOT 
specifications (for example, illegal signs, fences, retaining walls, headwalls, non-breakaway mailboxes, 
etc.).  The City recognizes its review and approval of such hazardous conditions will be in coordination 
with the Liberty Park Architectural Review Committee or other Association design review approvals. 

4. Access Permits: The City shall have review and permitting authority for any requests for 
side road or driveway access to the Existing Vestlake Roads. This will be reviewed and permitted per City 
Engineering standards. The City recognizes its review and approval of such access will be in coordination 
with the Liberty Park Architectural Review Committee or other Association design review approvals. 

5. Other:   



Resolution Number 5406 
Page 8 

 

48942022 v2  8 

a. The City has the authority to perform services within the rights-of-way of the Existing 
Vestlake Roads which are not expressly named in this Exhibit “C” that are considered to be in the best 
interest of public safety (including, but not limited to, application of sand during an ice or snow event). 

b. No denied access to the public rights-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads will be 
allowed. 

II. The Associations’ Responsibilities and Agreements: 

1. Maintenance and Repair.  The Association shall be responsible for maintaining and 
repairing the following improvements located within the rights-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads: 

 
a. Vegetation:  all vegetation, landscaping, lighting, and irrigation along the rights-of-way, 

including roadside, medians, and roundabout areas; 
 

b. Pedestrian Ways: all sidewalks/multi-use trails; 
 

c. Guardrails; 
 

d. Street and directional signage, subject, however, to the City’s review and approval for any 
potential road side hazard considerations; and 
 

e. Dam and Lake Embankments:  all dam and lake embankment maintenance, including 
periodic inspections and routine maintenance on outlet controls, erosion stabilization, and 
vegetation management. This shall include management of water levels to minimize impact 
to the roadway. 

2. Other:   

a. The City hereby grants the Association and its contractors, subcontractors, and agents, a 
license to enter upon the right-of-way of the Existing Vestlake Roads in order to perform the work specified 
in Section 1 above. 

b. The Association shall notify the City of any proposed work within the rights-of-way of the 
Existing Vestlake Roads. All work shall be reviewed and inspected by the City Engineer and his/her staff 
and determined to meet City specifications as determined by the City Engineer. 

c. The Association shall perform all Association responsibilities set forth in this Exhibit “C.”  
Should the Association fail to perform these responsibilities within 30 days of the City’s written demand, 
the City is authorized to perform the work that must be done in the interest of public safety and/or improving 
any situation that without attention would adversely impact the roadway. The City may bill the Association 
for the actual costs incurred by the City for labor, equipment, and materials for the said work. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Deleted]



48942022 v2 

d.  

Agreed to and accepted this ___ day of September, 2022 

VESTLAKE COMMUNITIES PROPERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC., 
an Alabama non-profit corporation 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:       
 
 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
an Alabama municipal corporation 
 
 
By:      
 Ashley Curry 
 Its:  Mayor 
 
 
By:      
 Jeffrey Downes 

 



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 1 

 

48942518 v2 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5407 
 

A RESOLUTION DEDICATING CORPORATE WOODS DRIVE (DEFINED 
HEREIN) TO THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  

 
 WHEREAS, on April 15, 1985, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama 

(the “City”) approved and adopted Ordinance Number 751, which in substance, and in very general 

terms, provides that an acceptance of a dedication can only be accomplished by the approval by 

the City Council of a formal resolution adopted at a regularly scheduled meeting or a special 

meeting called for that specific purpose and that the developer who offers dedication of land for 

public streets and roads must execute and deliver an agreement guarantying that all improvements 

for construction of public streets and roads will meet city requirements; and 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance Number 751 provides, among other things as follows: 

“The City shall not accept the dedication until such time as every lot 

in the subdivision as shown on the plat has been developed with the 

construction of a home or other building;” and 

 WHEREAS, Liberty Park Commercial Development Area Owners’ Association, Inc., an 

Alabama nonprofit corporation (the “Association”) is the owner of the road listed on Exhibit “A” 

attached hereto and depicted on Exhibit “B” attached hereto (“Corporate Woods Drive”) located 

within the municipal city limits of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Association has established a reserve fund for the repair and maintenance 

of Corporate Woods Drive, the balance of which, as of December 31, 2021, was $10,616.00 (the 

“Road Reserve Funds”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Association has offered to the City dedication of Corporate Woods Drive  

(including all improvements within the right-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive other than 

pedestrian ways (sidewalks/multi-use trails)) as a public road in its current condition, AS IS 

WHERE IS, in order that (i) the City, through its Public Service department, will be responsible 

for the maintenance and repair of Corporate Woods Drive in perpetuity; (ii) Corporate Woods 

Drive will become subject to the jurisdiction of the Vestavia Hills Police Department; and (iii) 

Corporate Woods Drive will become exempt from all ad valorem taxes as the same will be owned 

in fee simple by the City upon completion of the dedication process; and 



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 2 

 

48942518 v2 

WHEREAS, as a condition to accepting Corporate Woods Drive as a public road in its 

current condition, AS IS WHERE IS, the City requires that the Road Reserve Funds in the amount 

of $10,616.00 be transferred to the City in order to offset the City’s cost in performing any and all 

work that may be required to bring Corporate Woods Drive into compliance with the City’s 

specifications for public roads and the City’s cost of maintaining and repairing Corporate Woods 

Drive in perpetuity; 

WHEREAS, subject to the transfer of the Road Reserve Funds to the City, the City has 

agreed to accept dedication of Corporate Woods Drive subject to the terms, provisions and 

conditions of that certain Corporate Woods Drive Maintenance Agreement (the “Maintenance 

Agreement”) attached hereto as Exhibit “C” between the City and the Association which sets forth, 

among other things, (i) the City’s  responsibilities for maintaining and repairing the rights-of way 

of Corporate Woods Drive and certain improvements located within such right-of-way; and (ii) 

the Association’s responsibilities for maintaining and repairing certain other improvements located 

within such right-of-way, all as is more particularly set forth in the Maintenance Agreement; said 

Maintenance Agreement is incorporated into this Resolution Number 5407 by reference as though 

set out fully herein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that the acceptance of the offer of dedication 

of Corporate Woods Drive by the Association, subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of 

the Maintenance Agreement, will provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the 

prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the inhabitants of the City 

of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Corporate Woods Drive is hereby dedicated; and 

2. Said dedication is subject to the terms, provisions and conditions of the Maintenance 

Agreements; and 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

  



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 3 

 

48942518 v2 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
 
            
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
       
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 4 

 

48942518 v2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CORPORATE WOODS DRIVE 
 

That road identified as Corporate Woods Drive on the following surveys: (i) Corporate 
Woods Addition to Liberty Park Resurvey No. 2, as recorded in Map Book 204, page 87 
in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama and (ii) Corporate 
Woods Addition to Liberty Park Resurvey No. 3, as recorded in Map Book 206, page 51 
in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 5 

 

48942518 v2 

EXHIBIT B 
 

DEPICTION OF CORPORATE WOODS DRIVE  
 

 
[See attached] 

 



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 6 

 

48942518 v2 

 



48942518 v2 



48942518 v2 

EXHIBIT “C” 

Corporate Woods Drive Maintenance Agreement  

Notwithstanding any provision in the Resolution to which this Exhibit “C” is attached to the contrary, the 
City has agreed to accept dedication of Corporate Woods Drive and the maintenance and repair of only 
those improvements set forth in Section I below which are located within the right-of-way of Corporate 
Woods Drive.  The Association shall remain solely responsible for those improvements located within the 
right-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive that are set forth in Section II below.  Capitalized terms used in 
this Exhibit “C” without definition shall have the meanings set forth in the Resolution to which this Exhibit 
“C” is attached. 

I. City’s Responsibilities and Agreements: 

1. Maintenance and Repair.  The City, through its Public Services/Public Works Department, 
shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the rights-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive and the 
following improvements located within such right-of-way: 

a. Roads:  Roadway surfaces and roadbed repairs, including the repair of all potholes and 
periodic resurfacing/paving (note: the City’s road paving needs are evaluated annually);  

b. Curb and Gutter:  Curb and gutter; drainage inlet tops, grates, and covers; manhole and 
other utility covers; 

c. Traffic Control:  Striping, markings, signals, traffic control signage, and associated items 
serving side road connections; and 

d. Drainage:  All drainage systems, including but not limited to drainage inlets, catch basins, 
manholes, storm drain pipe and drainage swales. 

The timing of such maintenance and repair shall be at the direction and discretion of the City 
Manager/City Engineer.  The Association is directed to the City’s website 
(www.vhal.org/departments/public-services/public-works.org) for information regarding City owned 
roads. 

2. Utilities.  The City will review applications for permits and, if approved, will direct and 
inspect all utilities to be placed, repaired, or otherwise altered within the rights-of-way of Corporate Woods 
Drive in accordance with City requirements and regulations. 

3. Roadside Hazard Determination. The City has review and permitting authority for any 
encroachments of Corporate Woods Drive that could be considered a safety hazard per ALDOT 
specifications (for example, illegal signs, fences, retaining walls, headwalls, non-breakaway mailboxes, 
etc.).  The City recognizes its review and approval of such hazardous conditions will be in coordination 
with the Liberty Park Architectural Review Committee or other Association design review approvals. 

4. Access Permits: The City shall have review and permitting authority for any requests for 
side road or driveway access to Corporate Woods Drive. This will be reviewed and permitted per City 
Engineering standards. The City recognizes its review and approval of such access will be in coordination 
with the Liberty Park Architectural Review Committee or other Association design review approvals. 

5. Other:   



Resolution Number 5407 
Page 9 

 

48942518 v2  9 

a. The City has the authority to perform services within the rights-of-way of Corporate Woods 
Drive which are not expressly named in this Exhibit “C” that are considered to be in the best interest of 
public safety (including, but not limited to, application of sand during an ice or snow event). 

b. No denied access to the public rights-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive will be allowed. 

II. The Associations’ Responsibilities and Agreements: 

1. Maintenance and Repair.  The Association shall be responsible for maintaining and 
repairing the following improvements located within the rights-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive: 

 
a. Vegetation:  all vegetation, landscaping, lighting, and irrigation along the rights-of-way, 

including roadside, medians, and roundabout areas; 
 

b. Pedestrian Ways: all sidewalks/multi-use trails; 
 

c. Guardrails; 
 

d. Street and directional signage, subject, however, to the City’s review and approval for any 
potential road side hazard considerations; and 
 

e. Dam and Lake Embankments:  all dam and lake embankment maintenance, including 
periodic inspections and routine maintenance on outlet controls, erosion stabilization, and 
vegetation management. This shall include management of water levels to minimize impact 
to the roadway. 

2. Other:   

a. The City hereby grants the Association and its contractors, subcontractors, and agents, a 
license to enter upon the right-of-way of Corporate Woods Drive in order to perform the work specified in 
Section 1 above. 

b. The Association shall notify the City of any proposed work within the rights-of-way of 
Corporate Woods Drive. All work shall be reviewed and inspected by the City Engineer and his/her staff 
and determined to meet City specifications as determined by the City Engineer. 

c. The Association shall perform all Association responsibilities set forth in this Exhibit “C.”  
Should the Association fail to perform these responsibilities within 30 days of the City’s written demand, 
the City is authorized to perform the work that must be done in the interest of public safety and/or improving 
any situation that without attention would adversely impact the roadway. The City may bill the Association 
for the actual costs incurred by the City for labor, equipment, and materials for the said work. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Deleted]



48942518 v2 

d.  

Agreed to and accepted this ___ day of September, 2022 

LIBERTY PARK COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT AREA OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC., 
an Alabama non-profit corporation 
 
 
By:       
Name:       
Title:       
 
 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
an Alabama municipal corporation 
 
 
By:      
 Ashley Curry 
 Its:  Mayor 
 
 
By:      
 Jeffrey Downes 

 



Ordinance Number 3111 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3111 

ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of June, 2022, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

1. That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3516 and 3524 Ridgedale Drive 
Lots 27 and 33, Rocky Ridge Estates 

Patricia Lucas, John and Helen White, Owner(s) 

2. That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

3. That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 



Ordinance Number 3111 
Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3111 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3111 
Page 3 

 



Ordinance Number 3111 
Page 4 

 

 















City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  3524 Ridgedale Drive Property Address

====>   $                                                            341,500  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$34,150.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$701.78 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$981.81 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,683.60
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$515.67
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$280.03 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$701.78 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,777.51 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,479.29 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  3516 Ridgedale Drive Property Address

====>   $                                                            317,200  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$31,720.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$651.85 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$911.95 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,563.80
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$478.97
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$260.10 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$651.85 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,651.03 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,302.87 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

























Ordinance Number 3112 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3112 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY E-2 TO VESTAVIA 
HILLS R-1 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-2 (low density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-1 (low density residential district:  

3524 and 3516 Ridgedale Drive 
Lots 27 and 33, Rocky Ridge Estates 

Patricia Lucas and John & Helen White, Owner(s) 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3112 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3112 is a true and correct 
copy of such 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 3112 
Page 3 

 



8/17/22, 3:29 PM

1/2

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-3 Representat
ive: John White

Owner Name: John White & Patty Lucas Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr, Vestavia Hills, AL
35243

Project Address: 3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr
Legal
Description: Lots 27 and 33 Rocky Ridge Estates

Parcel ID
Number: 28-32-4-001-49.000 & 50.001

Current Zoning: JC E-2
Requested
Zoning: VH R-1

Intended
Purpose: annexation

P&Z
Recommendation
:

MOTION       Mr. Farrell made a motion to recommend Compatible Rezoning from JC E-2
to Vestavia Hills R-1 for the property located at 2516 & 2534 Ridgedale Dr. Second was by
Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                                

Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes         

Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes

Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting: August 11, 2022

  



8/17/22, 3:29 PM

2/2

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



8/17/22, 3:31 PM

1/2

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Owner Information

Rezoning Application

RZ-22-3
Submitted On: Jul 6, 2022

Applicant

  John White
   205-240-0420

  john.parker.white@gmail.com

Primary Location

3524 RIDGEDALE DR
 VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Subject Property Address

3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr

Tax Parcel ID Number

--

Legal Description

Lots 27 and 33 Rocky Ridge Estates

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/06/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

JC E-2

To Requested Zoning Classification

VH R-1

For the Intended Purpose of:

annexation

Acreage of Subject Property

N/A

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

N/A

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-
residential development or is a residential development in
excess of 3 units, that I am required to submit a tree save plan
concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).

true

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the
property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by
way of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

John White & Patty Lucas



8/17/22, 3:31 PM

2/2

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

3524 & 3516 Ridgedale Dr, Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

Owner's Phone Number

205-240-0420

Email Address of Owner

john.parker.white@gmail.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the
representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this
petition for rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am
submitting notarized documentation from the owner which
authorizes me to represent this case.

true

Owner Representative/Responsible Party

John White

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--



Ordinance Number 3113 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3113 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of June, 2022, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2632 Rillwood Road 
Lot 15, Altadena Park 

Jason Womack, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3113 
Page 2 

 

ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3113 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3113 
Page 3 

 

 



2632 Rillwood Road



2632 Rillwood Road



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2632 Rillwood Rd Property Address

====>   $                                                            466,200  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$46,620.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$958.04 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,340.33 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,298.37
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$703.96
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$382.28 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$958.04 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,426.57 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,384.61 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

2632 Rillwood Road



2632 Rillwood Road



2632 Rillwood Road



2632 Rillwood Road



Ordinance Number 3114 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3114 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY E-1 TO VESTAVIA 
HILLS E-2 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County E-1 (estate 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (estate residential district:  

2632 Rillwood Road 
Lot 15 Altadena Park 

Jason Womack, Owner(s) 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3114 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3114 is a true and correct 
copy of such 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 3114 
Page 3 

 



8/17/22, 4:08 PM

1/2

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-4 Representat
ive: 

Owner Name: Jason Womack Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 2632 Rillwood Road, Vestavia Hills 35243

Project Address: 2632 Rillwood Road
Legal
Description: Lot 15 Altadena Park 2nd Sector

Parcel ID
Number: 28-00-28-4-001-019.000

Current Zoning: Jefferson County E-1
Requested
Zoning: Vestavia Hills E-2

Intended
Purpose: Annexation 

P&Z
Recommendation
:

MOTION       Mr. Farrell made a motion to recommend Compatible Rezoning from JC E-1
to Vestavia Hills E-2 for the property located at 2632 Rillwood Rd. Second was by Mr.
Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                                

Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes         

Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes

Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting: August 11, 2022

  



8/17/22, 4:08 PM

2/2

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



8/17/22, 4:09 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3395/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 1/4

08/17/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-4

Rezoning Application

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Status: Active Date Created: Jul 6, 2022

Applicant

Jason Womack 

jason@coosaconsulting.com 

2632 Rillwood Rd 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35243 

2565049373 

Primary Location

2632 RILLWOOD RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Owner:

Jason Womack 

2632 Rillwood rd Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35243

Subject Property Address

2632 Rillwood Road

Tax Parcel ID Number

28-00-28-4-001-019.000

Legal Description

Lot 15 Altadena Park 2nd Sector

Existing Parking Spaces

3

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/06/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

Jefferson County E-1

To Requested Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills E-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Annexation 

Acreage of Subject Property

1acre

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

1acre

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-residential development or is a residential development in excess of 3 units, that I

am required to submit a tree save plan concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).



8/17/22, 4:09 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3395/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 2/4

Owner Information

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Internal Reviews



Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the

property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by way

of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

Jason Womack

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

2632 Rillwood Road, Vestavia Hills 35243

Owner's Phone Number

2565049373

Email Address of Owner

Jason@coosaconsulting.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this petition for

rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am submitting notarized documentation from the owner which authorizes me to represent

this case.



Owner Representative/Responsible Party

--

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--

Date of P&Z Meeting

08/11/2022

P&Z Recommendation & Vote

MOTION       Mr. Farrell made a motion to recommend Compatible Rezoning from JC E-1 to Vestavia Hills E-2 for the property located

at 2632 Rillwood Rd. Second was by Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                                

Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes         

Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes

Motion carried.



Ordinance Number 3115 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3115 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of June, 2022, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2655 Yorkmont Drive 
Lot 16, Chimney Hills 

Daniel and Faye Cabron, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3115 
Page 2 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3115 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 3115 
Page 3 

 

 



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



2644 Yorkmont Drive



Ordinance Number 3116 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3116 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA 
HILLS R-2 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (low-density 

residential district) to Vestavia Hills E-2 (low-density residential district:  

2644 Yorkmont Drive 
Lot 16, Chimney Hills 

Daniel and Fay Cambron, Owner(s) 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3116 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3116 is a true and correct 
copy of such 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 3116 
Page 3 

 



8/18/22, 10:47 AM

1/2

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-5 Representat
ive: 

Owner Name: Daniel Cambron Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 2644 Yorkmont Drive, Vestavia Hills AL 
35226

Project Address: 2644 Yorkmont Drive
Legal
Description: Lot 16, Chimney Hills

Parcel ID
Number: 29-35-4-001-17.000

Current Zoning: Jefferson County R-1
Requested
Zoning: Vestavia Hills R-2

Intended
Purpose: Annexation

P&Z
Recommendation
:

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Compatible Rezoning from JC R-1
to Vestavia Hills R-2 for the property located at 2644 Yorkmont Dr. Second was by Mr.
Honeycutt. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                                
Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes         
Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes
                                                             Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting: August 11, 2022

  



8/18/22, 10:47 AM

2/2

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



8/18/22, 10:48 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3518/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 1/4

08/18/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-5

Rezoning Application

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Status: Active Date Created: Jul 13, 2022

Applicant

Daniel Cambron 

daniel.cambron@gmail.com 

2644 Yorkmont Drive  

Vestavia Hills, AL 35226 

205-542-7674 

Primary Location

2644 YORKMONT DR 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35226

Subject Property Address

2644 Yorkmont Drive

Tax Parcel ID Number

29-35-4-001-17.000

Legal Description

Lot 16, Chimney Hills

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

07/07/2022

Type of Project

Annexation of a Single-Family Home

From Existing Zoning Classification

Jefferson County R-1

To Requested Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills R-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Annexation

Acreage of Subject Property

0.5

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

na

Front

--

Back

--

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-residential development or is a residential development in excess of 3 units, that I

am required to submit a tree save plan concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).





8/18/22, 10:48 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/3518/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 2/4

Owner Information

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Internal Reviews

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the

property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by way

of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

Daniel Cambron

Company Name

na

Owner Address City State Zip

2644 Yorkmont Drive, Vestavia Hills AL  35226

Owner's Phone Number

205-542-7674

Email Address of Owner

daniel.cambron@gmail.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this petition for

rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am submitting notarized documentation from the owner which authorizes me to represent

this case.



Owner Representative/Responsible Party

--

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--

Date of P&Z Meeting

08/11/2022

P&Z Recommendation & Vote

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Compatible Rezoning from JC R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 for the property located

at 2644 Yorkmont Dr. Second was by Mr. Honeycutt. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                                 

Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes          

Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes 

                                                             Motion carried.

Date of City Council Presentation

--

Proposed Ordinance No.

--

City Council Decision, Conditions, Reason for Denial



Ordinance Number 3121 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3121 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON COUNTY R-4, R-T AND R-2 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-4 (multi-

family residential), R-T (townhome residential) and R-2 (medium-density residential 

district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district:  

2245 AND 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd 
Townes Development Group LLP, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows:   
 

Parcel 1. Commence at the Northeast corner of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of 
Section 35, Township 18 South, Range 3 West, and run west along the north 
line of said ¼-¼ Section for 256.34 feet; thence 45 degrees 17 minutes left 
and Southwesterly for 452.99 feet; thence 90 degrees and 00 minutes left 
and run Southeasterly for 25.00 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel 
of land herein described; thence continue Southeasterly along last stated 
course for 150.00 feet; thence 90 degrees 00 minutes left and run 
Northeasterly for 100.00 feet; thence 90 degrees 00 minutes right and run 
Southeasterly for 146.74 feet to a point on the Northwesterly property line 
of Lot 0, Block 9 or Regent Forest Estates Second Addition as recorded in 
Map Book 54, Page 73 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama, said point being 108.31 feet Northeasterly of 
Southwesterly corner of said Lot 9, thence 70 degrees 54 minutes right and 
run Southwesterly for 261.96 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 8, Block 
9 of said Regent Forest Estates, Second Addition; thence 28 degrees 56 
minutes left and run Southerly along Westerly property line of Lot 7, Block 
9 of said Regent Forest Estates, Second addition for 153.23 feet, thence 138 
degrees 02 minutes right run Northwesterly for 346.39 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes right and run Northeasterly for 100.00 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes left and run Northwesterly for 150.00 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes right and run Northeasterly for 150.00 feet to the point 
of beginning. This parcel of land being Lot 5, Block 1, according to the 



Ordinance Number 3121 
Page 2 

survey of Regent Forest Estates, Eighth Addition, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, Map Book 62, Page 22-A. 
 
Parcel 2.  parcel of land located in the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of 
Section 35, Township 18, Range 3 West, which was formerly known as Lots 
1-4, in Block 1, of Regent Forest, 8th Addition, as recorded in Map Book 
68, Page 22, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, said subdivision having been vacated by that certain instrument 
in Real Volume 84, Page 526, in said Probate Office.  This parcel of land is 
as follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 35, Township 18, South Range 2 West; thence turn 
Southerly an angle of 125 degrees 29 minutes and run a distance of 58.59 
feet to a point, which is the Northwest corner of Lot 15, Block 9, in Regent 
Forest Estates Second Addition, as recorded in Map Book 54, page 73, in 
the Office of the Probate Judge of Jefferson County , Alabama ; thence turn 
Southwesterly an angle of 108 degrees 20 minutes and run Southwesterly a 
distance of 500.10 feet along the rear lot lines of Lots 14, 13,12, 11 and 10, 
Block 9, in aforesaid Regent Forest Estates 2nd Addition subdivision to a 
point that is the Northwest Corner of Lot 10 , Block 9, in said subdivision ; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 169 degrees 04 minutes and 30 seconds 
and run Southwesterly 28.59 feet along the rear lot line of Lot 9, Block 9, 
in said subdivision to a point ; thence turn an angle to the right of 70 degrees 
54 minutes and run Northwesterly 146.74 feet to a point; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 90 degrees and run Southwesterly 100 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run 150 feet to a point on 
the south boundary line of the Blue Ridge Blvd. Right of Way, then turn an 
angle to the right of 90 degrees and run Northeasterly along the said South 
boundary line of Blue Ridge Blvd. a distance of 440. 75 feet to the point of 
intersection of the said South boundary line of the Southwest ¼ of Section 
35, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, in Jefferson County, Alabama; then 
turn an angle to the right and run Eastward along the North line of quarter-
quarter section a distance of 296.1 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this rezoning is conditioned upon the 

following: 

1. That the developer file and record private restrictive covenants that  

a. Preserves and protects the rear portion of the property left undeveloped 

pursuant to this preliminary plat to be left primitive and undeveloped with 

only the removal of diseased or dead trees; and 

b. That buffering to be provided for the private residence located beside this 

development pursuant to the buffering requirements of the zoning code; 

and 



Ordinance Number 3121 
Page 3 

c. For both areas to be maintained and preserved by the proposed 

homeowner’s association; and  

d. That the zoning not become effective until the CC&Rs are filed in the 

Office of the Judge of Probate with a copy submitted to the City Clerk prior 

to the effective date of the ordinance 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3121 is a true and correct 
copy of such 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 



Ordinance Number 3121 
Page 4 

 



8/19/22, 12:27 PM

1/2

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-1 Representat
ive: Blake Pittman

Owner Name: Townes Development Group LLC Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd

Project Address: 2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd
Legal
Description:
Parcel ID
Number:
Current Zoning: JC R-T (Townhomes), JC R-4 (Multi-Family) JC R-2 (Single Family)
Requested
Zoning: VH R-9

Intended
Purpose: 25 unit townhome development

P&Z
Recommendation
:

MOTION       Mr. Sykes made a motion to recommend Rezoning from JC R-T, JC R-2, &
JC R-4 to Vestavia Hills R-9 for the property located at 2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd.
subject to the following conditions:  that the developer file and record private restrictive
covenants that (1) preserves and protects the rear portion of the property left undeveloped
pursuant to this preliminary plat to be left primitive and undeveloped with only the removal
of diseased or dead trees; (2) that buffering to be provided for the private residence
located beside this development pursuant to the buffering requirements of the zoning
code; (3) for both areas to be maintained and preserved by the proposed homeowner’s
association; and (4) that the zoning not become effective until the CC&Rs are filed in the
Office of the Judge of Probate with a copy submitted to the City Clerk prior to the effective
date of the ordinance becoming effective Second was by Mr. Farrell. Motion was carried
on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Maloof– yes                     Mr. Farrell – yes                              

Mr. Honeycutt– yes                Mr. Sykes – yes         

Mr. Larson – yes                     Ms. Vercher – yes

Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting:



8/19/22, 12:27 PM

2/2

  

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



6/3/22, 9:08 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 1/3

06/03/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-1

Rezoning Application

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Status: Active Date Created: May 31, 2022

Applicant

Blake Pittman 

blake@taylorburton.com 

3239 Lorna Rd 

Ste. 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

2058227936 

Subject Property Address

2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd

Tax Parcel ID Number

--

Legal Description

--

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

05/03/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

JC R-T (Townhomes), JC R-4 (Multi-Family)

To Requested Zoning Classification

VH R-9

For the Intended Purpose of:

25 unit townhome development

Acreage of Subject Property

5.50

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

2.5

Front

15

Back

15

Side

0

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-residential development or is a residential development in excess of 3 units, that I am
required to submit a tree save plan concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).





6/3/22, 9:08 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=10538%2C1… 2/3

Owner Information

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Attachments

History

Date Activity

May 31, 2022 at 9:57 am Conrad Garrison started a draft of Record RZ-22-1

Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the

property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by way

of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

Townes Development Group LLC

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

2245 & 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd

Owner's Phone Number

2053683007

Email Address of Owner

alciahuey@gmail.com

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the owner or the representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this petition for

rezoning. Simultaneously with this application, I am submitting notarized documentation from the owner which authorizes me to represent this
case.



Owner Representative/Responsible Party

Blake Pittman

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

--

Name

Bob Easley

Company

Alabama Engineering Company

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--

pdf app.pdf 

Uploaded by Conrad Garrison on May 31, 2022 at 10:27 am

pdf Blue Ridge Townhomes Annexation and Rezoning Submittal 03102022 (002).pdf 

Uploaded by Conrad Garrison on May 31, 2022 at 10:27 am

pdf Tree Save- Landscaping Plan.pdf 

Uploaded by Conrad Garrison on May 31, 2022 at 10:53 am

zoning.jpg 

Uploaded by Conrad Garrison on May 31, 2022 at 2:54 pm



6/3/22, 9:11 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12222/printable 1/1

06/03/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-1

Planning Review

Rezoning Application

Comments

Conrad Garrison, May 31, 2022 at 10:29am

Rezoning not final until final plat CC&R's recorded

Conrad Garrison, Jun 3, 2022 at 9:11am

Applicant is current in the 90 day annexation process for a 25 unit townhome development.

The development would be accessed by a center drive with garage and driveway parking

in the rear of the units. The undisturbed area will remain so in accordance with the

development plans. Applicant will do some minor improvements to Blue Ridge Blvd. to

improve curb and gutter and guardrails.

Site plans, renderings, and tree save plans are attached.

Property is zoned for townhomes and multi-family in the county and project could be

considered down-zoning in the City. The property is not contemplated on any land use

plan. The property is directly across from Hoover city limits and I-65 ROW.

 

Status: Complete

Assignee: Conrad Garrison

Became Active:

Completed: 05/31/2022

Applicant

Blake Pittman 

blake@taylorburton.com 

3239 Lorna Rd 

Ste. 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

2058227936 



6/3/22, 9:12 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12223/printable 1/1

06/03/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-1

Engineering Review

Rezoning Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Jun 2, 2022 at 3:05pm

Engineering has initiated preliminary review of submitted plans and discussed comments with

developer and design engineer, including on site visits to review grading and drainage.

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 05/31/2022

Completed: 06/02/2022

Applicant

Blake Pittman 

blake@taylorburton.com 

3239 Lorna Rd 

Ste. 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

2058227936 



6/3/22, 9:12 AM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/2540/12225/printable 1/1

06/03/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-1

Fire Marshal Review

Rezoning Application

Comments

Christopher Vines, May 31, 2022 at 11:27am

No issues

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Vines

Became Active: 05/31/2022

Completed: 05/31/2022

Applicant

Blake Pittman 

blake@taylorburton.com 

3239 Lorna Rd 

Ste. 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

2058227936 









Ordinance Number 3122 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3122 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 27th day of June, 2022, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2245 and 2249 Blue Ridge Blvd 
Taylor Burton and Donald & Alicia Huey, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Parcel 1. Commence at the Northeast corner of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of 
Section 35, Township 18 South, Range 3 West, and run west along the north 
line of said ¼-¼ Section for 256.34 feet; thence 45 degrees 17 minutes left 
and Southwesterly for 452.99 feet; thence 90 degrees and 00 minutes left 
and run Southeasterly for 25.00 feet to the point of beginning of the parcel 
of land herein described; thence continue Southeasterly along last stated 
course for 150.00 feet; thence 90 degrees 00 minutes left and run 
Northeasterly for 100.00 feet; thence 90 degrees 00 minutes right and run 
Southeasterly for 146.74 feet to a point on the Northwesterly property line 
of Lot 0, Block 9 or Regent Forest Estates Second Addition as recorded in 
Map Book 54, Page 73 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 
County, Alabama, said point being 108.31 feet Northeasterly of 
Southwesterly corner of said Lot 9, thence 70 degrees 54 minutes right and 
run Southwesterly for 261.96 feet to the Southwest corner of Lot 8, Block 
9 of said Regent Forest Estates, Second Addition; thence 28 degrees 56 
minutes left and run Southerly along Westerly property line of Lot 7, Block 
9 of said Regent Forest Estates, Second addition for 153.23 feet, thence 138 



Ordinance Number 3122 
Page 2 

 

degrees 02 minutes right run Northwesterly for 346.39 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes right and run Northeasterly for 100.00 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes left and run Northwesterly for 150.00 feet thence 90 
degrees 00 minutes right and run Northeasterly for 150.00 feet to the point 
of beginning. This parcel of land being Lot 5, Block 1, according to the 
survey of Regent Forest Estates, Eighth Addition, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, Map Book 62, Page 22-A. 
 
Parcel 2.  parcel of land located in the Southwest ¼ of the Northeast ¼ of 
Section 35, Township 18, Range 3 West, which was formerly known as Lots 
1-4, in Block 1, of Regent Forest, 8th Addition, as recorded in Map Book 
68, Page 22, in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, 
Alabama, said subdivision having been vacated by that certain instrument 
in Real Volume 84, Page 526, in said Probate Office.  This parcel of land is 
as follows:  Begin at the Northeast corner of the Southwest ¼ of the 
Northeast ¼ of Section 35, Township 18, South Range 2 West; thence turn 
Southerly an angle of 125 degrees 29 minutes and run a distance of 58.59 
feet to a point, which is the Northwest corner of Lot 15, Block 9, in Regent 
Forest Estates Second Addition, as recorded in Map Book 54, page 73, in 
the Office of the Probate Judge of Jefferson County , Alabama ; thence turn 
Southwesterly an angle of 108 degrees 20 minutes and run Southwesterly a 
distance of 500.10 feet along the rear lot lines of Lots 14, 13,12, 11 and 10, 
Block 9, in aforesaid Regent Forest Estates 2nd Addition subdivision to a 
point that is the Northwest Corner of Lot 10 , Block 9, in said subdivision ; 
thence turn an angle to the left of 169 degrees 04 minutes and 30 seconds 
and run Southwesterly 28.59 feet along the rear lot line of Lot 9, Block 9, 
in said subdivision to a point ; thence turn an angle to the right of 70 degrees 
54 minutes and run Northwesterly 146.74 feet to a point; thence turn an 
angle to the left of 90 degrees and run Southwesterly 100 feet to a point; 
thence turn an angle to the right of 90 degrees and run 150 feet to a point on 
the south boundary line of the Blue Ridge Blvd. Right of Way, then turn an 
angle to the right of 90 degrees and run Northeasterly along the said South 
boundary line of Blue Ridge Blvd. a distance of 440. 75 feet to the point of 
intersection of the said South boundary line of the Southwest ¼ of Section 
35, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, in Jefferson County, Alabama; then 
turn an angle to the right and run Eastward along the North line of quarter-
quarter section a distance of 296.1 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 2.  BE IF FURTHER ORDAINED, that said rezoning is conditioned upon the 

following conditions: 

a) That private restrictive covenants be filed to preserve and protect the rear 

portion of the property left undeveloped pursuant to this preliminary plat to 

be left primitive and undeveloped with only the removal of diseased or dead 

trees;  



Ordinance Number 3122 
Page 3 

 

b) That buffering to be provided for the private residence located beside this 

development pursuant to the buffering requirements of the zoning code;  

c) For both areas to be maintained and preserved by the proposed 

homeowner’s association; and  

d) That the zoning not become effective until the CC&Rs are filed in the Office 

of the Judge of Probate with a copy submitted to the City Clerk prior to the 

effective date of the ordinance becoming effective. 

3.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance and said conditions in accordance with the provisions of law, after which 

the heretofore described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama. 

 4.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law. 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3122 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 



Ordinance Number 3122 
Page 4 

 

Hills on the 26th day of September, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3122 
Page 5 

 

 



























Ordinance Number 3123
 Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3123 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST AMENDED 
SO AS TO APPROVE THE THIRD AMENDMENT TO PATCHWORK 
FARM PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT ZONING APPLICATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN DATED JULY 12, 2022, TO INCREASE THE 
NUMBER OF ATTACHED DWELLING UNITS WITHIN CERTAIN 
PROPERTY WITHIN THE PATCHWORK FARM PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT TO A MAXIMUM OF 37 UNITS 

 WHEREAS, on February 23, 2009, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2253 to rezone 87 +/- acres known as 

Patchwork Farms pursuant to the Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning Application 

Development Plan dated December 3, 2008 (revised 2/26/09) (the “Patchwork Farms PUD Plan”); 

and 

WHEREAS, on September 14, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

Number 2532 to adopt the First Amendment to the Patchwork Farms Planned Unit Development 

Plan dated July 10, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, on November 26, 2018, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

Number 2807 to adopt the Second Amendment to the Patchwork Farms Planned Unit Development 

Plan dated September 6, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, a owner of property subject to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan has filed a 

Third Amendment to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan dated July 12, 2022 (the “Third 

Amendment”) requesting, but not limited to, the following: 

 As a result of a property owner’s desire to construct thirty-seven (37) attached residential

units on property described as Lots 5A and 5C, Patchwork Farms Lot 5 Resurvey Final

Plat “Christopher Property”, as recorded in Map Book 241, Page 37, Probate Office of

Jefferson County, Alabama, the maximum attached residential units density under the

Patchwork Farms PUD Plan will require a 7-unit increase for a total of 37 dwelling units.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia

Hills, Alabama, as follows:  That the Third Amendment, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, 

attached to and incorporated into this Resolution, be, and hereby is approved by the City Council 

of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 3123
 Page 2 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, as follows: That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended, be further amended so as to allow 

the following described real property (which is subject to the Patchwork Farms PUD Plan) to 

construct seven (7) additional single family attached units for a total of 37 dwelling units and that 

all necessary easements be recorded and a copy submitted to the Office of the City Clerk to be 

affixed to this Ordinance prior to effective date of this Ordinance: 

Lots 5A and 5C, Patchwork Farms Lot 5 Resurvey Final Plat “Christopher Property” 
Christopher, LLC, owner(s); and 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 26th day of September 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 3123
 Page 3 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance #3123 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 
26th day of September 2022 as same appears in the official records of said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia 
Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the _____ day of 
_______________, 2022. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3123



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     AUGUST 11, 2022 
 

 CASE:  P-0822-19 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Increasing Patchwork Farms PUD Condo Limit From 30 
to 37  

 
    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Patchwork Farms 

 
 APPLICANT/OWNER: Christopher, LLC Et Al 

 
 GENERAL DISCUSSION: The request is to amend the Patchwork Farms PUD 

regulations, lifting the cap on condo units from 30 to 37. The condo units would be 
part of a development that includes a hotel, retail, and parking garage. 

 
The proposed site plan and rationale are included. The proposed site plan does change 
traffic patterns in and around the PUD. Ingress/egress easements between lots in the 
PUD will be required. The rise in the condo unit cap is the only thing considered and 
requiring approval with this request. All other requirements of the Patchwork Farms 
PUD will be followed. 

 
 PATCHWORK FARMS PUD: The request is consistent with the PUD for planned 

mixed use.  
 

 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  Staff recommends the following 
conditions: A. Amendment not final until all ingress/egress easements are 
recorded and submitted to the City.  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  Traffic study will be required before permitting.  
 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
MOTION  Mr. Farrell made a motion to A Planned Unit Development Amendment For 
Patchwork Farms To Increase The Number Of Approved Condo Units From 30 To 37 for the 
property located at Patchwork Farms with the following condition 

1. All necessary easement documents shall be 
submitted to the City Clerk’s Ofiice and recorded. 
 

Second was by Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Maloof– yes  Mr. Farrell – yes    
Mr. Honeycutt– yes  Mr. Sykes – yes  
Mr. Larson – yes  Ms. Vercher – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3123



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3123



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3123



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3123



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5412 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor has recommended the reappointment of Jeff Slaton to the 

Vestavia Hills Design Review Board in an memorandum dated September 14, 2022.  A 

copy of said memorandum is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 5412 as though written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Council concurs with the Mayor’s recommendation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Jeff Slaton is hereby reappointed to the Vestavia Hills Design Review Board

effective immediately; and

2. Said appointment shall become effective on October 1, 2022 and shall expire on

September 30, 2025; and

3. This Resolution Number 5412 shall become effective upon approval and adoption.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 26th day of September, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5412



Resolution Number 5413 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5413 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5413 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 26th day of 

September, 2022. 

 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



 
 

Vestavia Hills Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 
 

INTEROFFICE MEMO 
 

Date:     September 9, 2022 
 
TO:    Jeff Downes 
    City Manager 
 
From:    Jamie Lee  
    Director of Parks and Leisure  
 
RE:    Surplus Items       
 
Please see the list of items below that we are requesting the council to declare as surplus 
property.  Our staff has identified these as no longer necessary for our operations.   
 

 1 Armoire 

 1 Sony TV Serial #: 4454354 

 1 Mitsubishi TV  Serial #: 5022226 

 1 Burgundy Sofa  

 1 Plastic Fichus Tree 

 1 Whirlpool Refrigerator Serial #: SP4456925 

 1 Bunn Tea Maker Serial #: DUAL 211129 

 1 Ice o Matic Ice Maker Serial #: G312‐16299Z 

 1 Victory Freezer Serial #: B0496147 

 Phillips Disc Player  Serial #:  KN020625410729 

 Sony DVD/VHS Player  Serial #: 3159787 

 Quasar VHS Player Serial #: SB 80992992 
 

Once declared as surplus property we will try and sell the items or simply dispose of 
those items that necessitate it.     
 
 
CC:    Rebecca Leavings 
     

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5413



ORDINANCE NUMBER 3126 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A REGIONAL TRAINING CENTER 
AGREEMENT WITH THE ALABAMA FIRE COLLEGE AND 
PERSONNEL STANDARDS COMMISSION, THE CITIES OF 
HOMEWOOD, HOOVER, MOUNTAIN BROOK AND ROCKY RIDGE 
FIRE DISTRICT TO PROVIDE CLASSROOM SPACE AND ASSOCIATED 
FACILITIES FOR TRAINING USES 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Regional

Training Center Agreement with the Alabama Fire College and Personnel Standards

Commission, the cities of Homewood, Hoover, Mountain Brook and Rocky Ridge Fire

Department; and

2. A copy of said Regional Training Center Agreement is marked as Exhibit A, attached to

and incorporated into the Ordinance Number 3126 as if written fully therein; and

3. This Ordinance Number 3126 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

posting/publication of said ordinance pursuant to Alabama law.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3126



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3126



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3126





Ordinance Number 3127 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3127 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A BID FOR RIGHTS-OF-WAY MOWING 
WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

 
 WHEREAS, on July 21, 2022 the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read aloud bids submitted 

for Rights-Of-Way mowing (“ROW mowing”); and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has reviewed the bids, established a bid 

tabulation in an Interoffice Memorandum to the City Manager dated September 20, 2022 and 

recommended acceptance of the bid submitted by Turf Management.  A copy of said Interoffice 

Memorandum is marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 

3127 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the Public Services Director and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Turf Management as detailed in attached Exhibit A and 

recommended by the Public Services Director, is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with Turf Management pursuant to said bid, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, 

attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3127; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 3127 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3127



Ordinance Number 3128 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3128 
 

AN ORDINANCE ACCEPTING A BID FOR LANDSCAPE 
MAINTENANCE WITHIN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

 
 WHEREAS, on July 21, 2022 the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read aloud bids submitted 

for Landscape Maintenance; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has reviewed the bids, established a bid 

tabulation in an Interoffice Memorandum to the City Manager dated September 20, 2022 and 

recommended acceptance of the bid submitted by Turf Management.  A copy of said Interoffice 

Memorandum is marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 

3128 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the Public Services Director and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Turf Management as detailed in attached Exhibit A and 

recommended by the Public Services Director, is hereby accepted; and 

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement 

with Turf Management pursuant to said bid, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, 

attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3128; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 3128 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 26th day of September, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



Exhibit B - Ordinance 3128



 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3129 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE SETTLEMENT OF THE 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION DIVISION CLAIM OF CHRISTOPHER 
MARENO, EMPLOYEE V. CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
EMPLOYER PENDING IN WORKERS’ COMPENSATION DIVISION, 
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR FOR THE STATE OF ALABAMA; 
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR AND CITY 
MANAGER TO PAY THE FUNDS DESCRIBED HEREIN AND TO TAKE 
ANY ACTION AND EXECUTE AND DELIVER ANY AND ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE SAID SETTLEMENT. 

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 3129 is approved, adopted and enacted by the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 26th day of September 2022. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, Alabama law at Title 11-43-56, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that 

the City Council shall have the management and control of the finances and all of the 

property, real and personal, belonging to the City; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-43-43, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all legislative powers 

granted to cities shall be exercised by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, declares municipalities bodies 

corporate and gives them the power to contract and be contracted with; provided, however, 

that the contract is in writing as required by Title 11-47-5, Code of Alabama, 1975; that the 

execution and delivery of the contract shall have first been approved by the City Council, 

Town of Boligee v.  Greene County Water and Sewer Authority, 77 So.3d 1166(2011), in the 

form of an ordinance or resolution, Van Antwerp, et al v. Board of Commissioners of City of 

Mobile,217 Ala. 201, 115 So. 239 (1928); that the contract be signed by the Mayor as required 

by Title 11-43-83, Code of Alabama, 1975; and that the contract be signed by the City 

Manager as required by Title 11-43- 21(7), Code of Alabama, 1975;and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-24(b), Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all municipal 

corporations of the State of Alabama are authorized to contract at governmental expense for 

policies of liability insurance to protect the City and its employees in the course of their 

employment; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-190, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that municipalities 

may be liable for negligence; and 



 

 

WHEREAS, Title 11-93-2, Code of Alabama, 1975, establishes the maximum amount 

of           damages recoverable against governmental entities with a limit of One Hundred Thousand 

Dollars ($100,000.00); and 

WHEREAS, the workman’s compensation case of Christopher Mareno, (hereinafter 

referred to as "Claim") was filed with the Workers’ Compensation Division of the Alabama 

Department of Labor against the City and said Claim is presently pending; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the Settlement Agreement and Memorandum Agreement 

dated September 2022 is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit A and is incorporated into this 

ordinance by reference as though set out fully herein. 

WHEREAS, attorneys and legal counsel of record representing the City      in the lawsuit 

have recommended that the City accept the Plaintiffs offer of settlement to the City as 

detailed in said Memorandum Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby incorporated into this 

ordinance by reference as though set out fully herein. 

2. The City Manager and Mayor are hereby authorized and directed to settle the 

Claim described in the premises above and attached.  

3. The total amount of settlement to be paid by and/or for and on behalf of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama ("City") shall be the sum of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 

($15,000.00) and the restoration of 840 hours of sick with pay employee (SWPE) time. Upon 

payment, the Claim against the City shall be settled. 

            4. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to pay the funds specified in 

section 3 above and to take any action and execute and deliver any and all documents necessary 

to effectuate said settlement. 

           5. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 

unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or 

impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect 

notwithstanding such holding. 

           6. The provisions of this Ordinance Number 3129 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage, approval and adoption thereof by the City Council and the 



 

publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

 

ORDAINED, APPROVED, ADOPTED, DONE and ORDERED on this the 26th 

day   of September, 2022. 

 
Ashley C. Curry  
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings,  
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

 
I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby certify 

that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of an ordinance duly and legally 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 26th day of October 
2022 while in regular session, and the same appears of record in the minute book of said date 
of said City. 

 
Witness my hand and seal of office this 26th day of October, 2022. 

 
 
 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 

 



1 
 

GENERAL RELEASE AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that the undersigned, CHRISTOPHER 

MARENO, for and in consideration of the total lump sum payment of FIFTEEN THOUSAND 

AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($15,000.00) plus the restoration of 840 hours of SWPE time, as 

reflected in the separate but related Memorandum Agreement entered in this matter, the receipt 

and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the undersigned, does for himself, his heirs, 

executors, administrators, agents, and assigns, hereby release, acquit and forever discharge  

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS; THE MUNICIPAL WORKERS COMPENSATION FUND; 

THE LEAGUE OF MUNICIPALITIES; MILLENNIUM RISK MANAGEMENT and 

its/their respective heirs, administrators, parent companies, subsidiary companies, affiliate 

companies, member companies, fund members, servants, agents, employees, directors, officers, 

insurers, reinsurers, legal counsel, predecessors, successors and assigns (hereinafter “Releasees”), 

of and from any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, suits and damages of every 

kind and nature, which the undersigned has had, now has, or may hereafter have, whether now 

known or hereafter discovered, both to person and property, so that the undersigned will have no 

claim against the Releasees, directly or indirectly, as a result of, arising out of, connected directly 

or indirectly with, or in any way based upon or incidental to his alleged work related accident, 

non-accidental injury, or disease occurring on or about June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020 and/or June 

22, 2020, and any resulting injuries, his workers’ compensation claim (including any claim for 

past, present or future indemnity, vocational or medical benefits, or otherwise), and from any and 

all other claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses, compensation, and all consequential damages 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



2 
 

whether or not relating to any of the matters, allegations or claims referred to herein.  

The undersigned expressly acknowledges that the release and waiver referred to above is a 

compromise of a doubtful and disputed claim and that this settlement for value is not to be 

construed as an admission of liability on the part of the Releasees, or any others, by whom liability 

is expressly denied. 

 The undersigned acknowledges and understands that the United States, the State of 

Alabama, Medicare, Medicaid, any other governmental entity, or any third-party medical treatment 

insurer, provider, or coverage may have claims against all or a portion of the undersigned’s 

settlement of past, present and future indemnity, vocational and medical workers’ compensation 

benefits in the event he seeks medical treatment at their expense. Consideration has been given to 

the fact that the undersigned has not applied for and/or is not receiving Social Security benefits 

and Medicare coverage/benefits, nor does he have a reasonable expectation of applying for and/or 

receiving said benefits in the next thirty (30) months. It is not the intention of the parties to this 

release to transfer or shift responsibility for medical treatment to Social Security, the United States, 

the State of Alabama, Medicare, Medicaid, or any other governmental entity or third-party medical 

insurer for medical treatment and expenses associated with the alleged injuries suffered as a result 

of the claimed on-the-job accident, non-accidental injury, or disease of June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020 

and/or June 22, 2020.  

The undersigned represents and warrants that, to the extent applicable, he will read and 

adhere to any requirements or regulations imposed by Medicare or any others and fully assumes 

any and all responsibility and liability associated with any future medical treatment of obligations 

related to the June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020 and/or June 22, 2020 alleged accident, non-accidental 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



3 
 

injury, or disease.

In still further consideration of the aforesaid payment, the undersigned stipulates and agrees 

that any claims or liens, including but not limited to any subrogation claims, payment claims, 

overpayment claims, conditional payments, etc., whether now known or later discovered, against 

the undersigned, or any others, as the result of this alleged on-the-job accident, non-accidental 

injury, or disease, in any way involving or which are against these settlement monies, will be paid, 

or have been paid or otherwise satisfied by the undersigned prior to disbursement or use of said 

settlement monies.  

This settlement has been premised upon the representations made by the undersigned that 

the undersigned has the sole right to receive any payments or proceeds being paid on behalf of the 

persons and companies released herein and that he is over the age of nineteen (19) years and of 

sound mind.  

NO PROMISE, INDUCEMENT OR AGREEMENT NOT HEREIN EXPRESSED 

HAS BEEN MADE TO ME. THIS RELEASE CONTAINS THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE PARTIES HERETO, AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT ARE 

CONTRACTUAL, AND ARE NOT A MERE RECITAL.  

The undersigned does hereby declare that the terms of this settlement have been completely 

read, or read to him, and understood and voluntarily accepted for the purposes of making a full 

and final compromise adjustment and settlement of any and all claims, disputed or otherwise, on 

account of the incident(s) involving the alleged work-related accident, non-accidental injury and/or 

disease to the undersigned as described above. The undersigned further acknowledges that he has 

had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel of his own choosing and after doing so, he has 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



4 

read this General Release and Indemnity Agreement and all other settlement documents (or had 

same read to him), and fully understands them and has signed them voluntarily. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto set his hand and seal this 

______ day of September 2022. 

 
_____________________________________ 

           CHRISTOPHER MARENO 
      Employee 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) 
 
 On this ________ day of September 2022, before me, a Notary Public within and for said 
County and State, personally appeared CHRISTOPHER MARENO to me known to be identical 
person described in, and who executed the foregoing instrument as employee, and acknowledged 
that the same is true, and that after reading the same, or having the same read to him, and with a 
full understanding of the terms and the effect thereof, he executed the same as his free act and deed 
and for the uses and purposes therein expressed. 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
      My Commission Expires: ________________ 
 
 
 
 
READ AND APPROVED BY:  
 
 
_________________________ 
KAREN BERHOW 
Attorney for Plaintiff  

 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



STATE OF ALABAMA 
Workers’ Compensation Division 

Department of Labor 
Montgomery, Alabama 36131 

 
MEMORANDUM AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to §25-5-292 
Alabama Workers’ Compensation Law 

 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO,  Employee  Social Security No.: xxx-xx-1089 
    
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS,  Employer  Date of Injury:    June 9, 2020 
           June 15, 2020 
           June 22, 2020 
Jefferson County, Alabama  
 
Pursuant to §25-5-290(e) of the Alabama Workers’ Compensation Law, a benefit review 
conference was held by agreement between the above parties with Ombudsman, Ted Roose. 
 
Issues – the issues presented for mediation were as follows: 
  Closed  Permanent Partial Disability/Permanent Total Disability 
  Closed  Vocational Rehabilitation Service 
  Closed  Vocational Disability  
  Closed  Future Medical Services 
 
Resolution –  

 
The parties have reached a compromised agreement of a hotly contested and wholly 

disputed claim whereby the Employee, CHRISTOPHER MARENO, agrees to accept, and the 
Employer, CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, agrees to pay, the lump sum in the amount of 
FIFTEEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($15,000.00), plus the restoration of 840 
hours of Sick With Pay Employee (SWPE) time in full, final and complete settlement of any 
and all claims of any nature or kind, whether now known or later discovered, including but not 
limited to any claim arising out the Employee’s employment relationship with the Employer as 
well as any claim for past, present or future workers’ compensation indemnity, vocational 
benefits and medical benefits arising out of the alleged June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020, and/or June 
22, 2020 on the job accident, non-accidental injury and/or disease. This settlement includes any 
and all claims the Employee may have for temporary total disability benefits, temporary partial 
disability benefits, permanent total disability benefits and permanent partial disability benefits, 
any claims for vocational disability benefits, retraining or rehabilitation at the expense of the 
Employer (including any claim pursuant to §25-5-57(a)(3)(i), Ala. Code (1975)), and future 
medical benefits which shall be closed. (Future Medical Benefits Closed). The Employee 
represents and warrants that he has not applied for disability benefits through the Social Security 
Administration nor does he have a reasonable expectation of becoming eligible for said benefits 
within the next preceding thirty (30) months.  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



The Employee further represents and warrants that he is not currently receiving Medicare 
or Medicaid benefits and does not have a reasonable expectation of becoming eligible for 
Medicare or Medicaid benefits within the next preceding thirty (30) months.  This Ombudsman 
determines, based upon that representation and warranty, and the direct questions to the 
Employee, Employer, and/or their representative that the Employee has no reasonable 
expectation of receiving benefits from the Social Security Administration and/or Medicare 
within the next thirty (30) months.  The parties further stipulate, they have considered 
Medicare’s interests in this settlement and this Ombudsman determines based upon that 
stipulation and the direct questions to the Employee, Employer, and/or their representative, that 
an allocation for future Medicare covered expenses is not required at this time pursuant to the 
policy and procedure established by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
through its policy memoranda and its WCMSA Reference Guide 3.7 of June 6, 2022, or any 
subsequently released version.  The parties stipulate that it is not the intention of any party to this 
action to shift responsibility for future medical benefits to the United States, the State of 
Alabama, Medicare, Medicaid, any other governmental entity or third-party medical provider.  
Rather, it is the express intention of the parties that the parties are as fully as possible 
compensating the Employee for the injuries and damages he has suffered without the constraints 
of selected and managed care as required by the Workers’ Compensation Act of Alabama, as last 
amended.  Consideration has been given to the fact that the Employee has not applied for and is 
not receiving Social Security Disability benefits and/or Medicare coverage at this time. This 
Ombudsman determines that the parties have adequately considered Medicare’s interests in the 
resolution of this matter. 

 
 

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that he has a right to legal counsel and has 
selected Larry King, Esq. and/or Karen Berhow, Esq. to represent him in this matter.  The 
Employee acknowledges and agrees that he has sought guidance and counsel from said attorneys 
in regard to his legal rights and in entering this settlement agreement and that his chosen legal 
counsel are entitled to an attorney fee as set by statute and reimbursement of reasonable costs in 
representation of the Employee.  The Employee also acknowledges and agrees that he has a right 
to a trial of his workers’ compensation claim, and after consideration of his right to trial and 
consultation with his chosen legal representation, he has voluntarily waived the same in order to 
participate in this settlement.  

 
The parties agree and stipulate that on or about June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020, and/or June 22, 
2020, Employee was employed by the Employer as a firefighter.  As to such employment, the 
parties were subject to and governed by the Workers’ Compensation Act of Alabama, as last 
amended.  On the aforesaid date, Employee alleges he sustained chest pain 1 ½ months earlier 
and now was scheduled for cardiac bypass surgery.  The Employee contends that his Employer 
was notified of his chest pain at the time the event(s) occurred.  The Employer contests notice of 
any claimed on-the-job accidental, non-accidental or occupational illness or disease and 
generally denies all liability with respect to this claim.  These are disputed claims. Regarding 
past, unauthorized medical treatment and any and all future treatment (including treatment that 
would otherwise be authorized), the parties have a dispute. The Employee asserts that certain 
past, unauthorized treatment and future medical treatment may be compensable under the Act. 
The Employer denies the Employee's claims and asserts that any and all past, unauthorized 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



treatment and any and all future medical treatment would not be compensable under the Act. The 
parties jointly stipulate and agree as a part of this settlement that any and all past, unauthorized 
medical treatment and any and all future medical treatment received by the Employee would not 
be compensable treatment under the Workers' Compensation Act of Alabama, as amended. 
Accordingly, any and all past, present and future medical benefits are CLOSED. 

 
The Employee was seen at by his primary physician, Dr. Brian Wells on July 7, 2020 at 

which time he reported chest discomfort not associated with exercise. Ultimately he was referred 
to Alabama Cardiovascular and then on September 14, 2020 underwent surgery, four coronary 
artery bypass grafting procedures, performed by Dr. John Casterline at Grandview Medical 
Center.  The Employer contends that all medical treatment rendered to the Employee was 
unauthorized, that none of the Employee’s medical conditions arise out of and in the course of 
his employment, that the Employee’s medical condition is not caused or aggravated by his 
employment, and that the Employer is not liable for payment of workers’ compensation medical 
benefits to these medical providers or on the Employee’s behalf.  The parties stipulate, and this 
Ombudsman determines based upon that stipulation and the direct questions to the Employee, 
Employer, and/or their representative that the Employee’s present medical condition is not 
compensable under Alabama’s Workers’ Compensation Act, and no workers’ compensation 
benefits are due to be paid by the Employer to or on behalf of the Employee.  The parties further 
stipulate, and this Ombudsman determines based upon that stipulation and the direct questions to 
the Employee, Employer, and/or their representative that the employee has reached maximum 
medical improvement (MMI) with respect to his current medical condition.  

 
At the time of the alleged accident, non-accidental injury, and/or disease, the Employee 

average weekly wage was approximately $XXXX with a corresponding maximum compensation 
rate of $XXXX. The Employer has paid no indemnity or medical benefits to or on behalf of the 
Employee. The Parties stipulate that the Employee’s time away from work for the medical 
treatment reflected herein totaled 840 hours.   

 
The Employee understands that this settlement will be paid in a lump sum and that the 

Employee's attorney is to receive a 15% attorney fee of the lump sum, in addition to 
reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred in the prosecution of this matter.  Said lump 
sum payment, after reduction of attorney fees and expenses incurred, leaves a balance of 
$11,975.60 to be paid to Employee. The amount to be paid under this settlement shall be paid 
without commutation of interest and shall represent the compromise agreement that the 
Employee is 49 years of age, and has a life expectancy of 32.16 years, or 1,676.8224 weeks 
forward from the date of this agreement and that the settlement herein reached represents the 
payment of, to wit: $37.14 per week over the life expectancy of the Employee. The parties 
jointly stipulate that they have adequately considered Medicare's interest. 

 
The Employee represents, stipulates and warrants that he has entered into this agreement 

voluntarily and on his own free will, and has not been influenced, coerced or pressured by 
anyone in reaching this settlement. The Employee acknowledges and affirms that he has been 
informed that he does not have to accept this settlement. The Employee further acknowledges 
that he has read the settlement documents or had the same read to him in his native tongue, has 
had sufficient opportunity to consult with his chosen legal counsel about same, and fully 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



understands the terms and conditions and has signed them voluntarily.  The Employee represents 
that this settlement is in the Employee’s best interest, and by execution of this agreement after 
examination of the Employee and approval of this settlement, the below signed Ombudsman 
agrees. 

 
 
 

 
Settlement Document – The parties do not intend to submit this settlement to the court for 
approval.  
 
Dated the   th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
             
Employee,      Claims Representative 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO 
 
 
             
Attorney for Employee    Attorney for Employer 
KAREN BERHOW     JONATHAN BERRYHILL 
 
 
             
Employer      Ombudsman, Ted Roose 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



STATE OF ALABAMA 
Workers’ Compensation Division 

Department of Labor 
Montgomery, Alabama 36131 

 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO,  Employee  Social Security No.:  xxx-xx-1089 
    
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS,  Employer  Date of Injury:    June 9, 2020 
           June 15, 2020 
           June 22, 2020 
           
Jefferson County, Alabama  
 
     

AFFIDAVIT 
 
 I acknowledge that I have the right to be represented by counsel, and the right to have any 
settlement of my claim reviewed by a court of competent jurisdiction at any time within 60 days 
after the date of the settlement, and at the end of 60 days it shall be final and irrevocable. I have 
had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel of my own choosing regarding these rights and 
fully understand my rights to have this settlement reviewed by a court of competent jurisdiction 
and with this understanding, cognizant of my rights, whereby in exchange for accepting the lump 
sum payment of $15,000, I hereby waive the right to have this settlement reviewed and 
understand that the settlement shall be final and irrevocable as of the date below. 
 
Dated the   th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
at Birmingham, Alabama         ___________________________________ 

City/State           Employee, CHRISTOPHER MARENO 
         

 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
On this   th day of September, 2022, before me, a Notary Public within and for said County and 
State, personally appeared CHRISTOPHER MARENO, to me known to be identical person 
described in, and who executed the foregoing instrument as employee, and acknowledged that 
the same is true, and that after reading the same, or having the same read to him, and with a full 
understanding of the terms and the effect thereof, he executed the same as his free act and deed 
and for the uses and purposes therein expressed. 
 
 
             
      Notary Public, State at Large 

My Commission Expires:     

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



STATE OF ALABAMA 
Workers’ Compensation Division 

Department of Labor 
Montgomery, Alabama 36131 

 
MEMORANDUM AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to §25-5-292 
Alabama Workers’ Compensation Law 

 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO,  Employee  Social Security No.: xxx-xx-1089 
    
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS,  Employer  Date of Injury:    June 9, 2020 
           June 15, 2020 
           June 22, 2020 
Jefferson County, Alabama  
 
Pursuant to §25-5-290(e) of the Alabama Workers’ Compensation Law, a benefit review 
conference was held by agreement between the above parties with Ombudsman, Ted Roose. 
 
Issues – the issues presented for mediation were as follows: 
  Closed  Permanent Partial Disability/Permanent Total Disability 
  Closed  Vocational Rehabilitation Service 
  Closed  Vocational Disability  
  Closed  Future Medical Services 
 
Resolution –  

 
The parties have reached a compromised agreement of a hotly contested and wholly 

disputed claim whereby the Employee, CHRISTOPHER MARENO, agrees to accept, and the 
Employer, CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, agrees to pay, the lump sum in the amount of 
FIFTEEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($15,000.00), plus the restoration of 840 
hours of Sick With Pay Employee (SWPE) time in full, final and complete settlement of any 
and all claims of any nature or kind, whether now known or later discovered, including but not 
limited to any claim arising out the Employee’s employment relationship with the Employer as 
well as any claim for past, present or future workers’ compensation indemnity, vocational 
benefits and medical benefits arising out of the alleged June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020, and/or June 
22, 2020 on the job accident, non-accidental injury and/or disease. This settlement includes any 
and all claims the Employee may have for temporary total disability benefits, temporary partial 
disability benefits, permanent total disability benefits and permanent partial disability benefits, 
any claims for vocational disability benefits, retraining or rehabilitation at the expense of the 
Employer (including any claim pursuant to §25-5-57(a)(3)(i), Ala. Code (1975)), and future 
medical benefits which shall be closed. (Future Medical Benefits Closed). The Employee 
represents and warrants that he has not applied for disability benefits through the Social Security 
Administration nor does he have a reasonable expectation of becoming eligible for said benefits 
within the next preceding thirty (30) months.  

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



The Employee further represents and warrants that he is not currently receiving Medicare 
or Medicaid benefits and does not have a reasonable expectation of becoming eligible for 
Medicare or Medicaid benefits within the next preceding thirty (30) months.  This Ombudsman 
determines, based upon that representation and warranty, and the direct questions to the 
Employee, Employer, and/or their representative that the Employee has no reasonable 
expectation of receiving benefits from the Social Security Administration and/or Medicare 
within the next thirty (30) months.  The parties further stipulate, they have considered 
Medicare’s interests in this settlement and this Ombudsman determines based upon that 
stipulation and the direct questions to the Employee, Employer, and/or their representative, that 
an allocation for future Medicare covered expenses is not required at this time pursuant to the 
policy and procedure established by the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) 
through its policy memoranda and its WCMSA Reference Guide 3.7 of June 6, 2022, or any 
subsequently released version.  The parties stipulate that it is not the intention of any party to this 
action to shift responsibility for future medical benefits to the United States, the State of 
Alabama, Medicare, Medicaid, any other governmental entity or third-party medical provider.  
Rather, it is the express intention of the parties that the parties are as fully as possible 
compensating the Employee for the injuries and damages he has suffered without the constraints 
of selected and managed care as required by the Workers’ Compensation Act of Alabama, as last 
amended.  Consideration has been given to the fact that the Employee has not applied for and is 
not receiving Social Security Disability benefits and/or Medicare coverage at this time. This 
Ombudsman determines that the parties have adequately considered Medicare’s interests in the 
resolution of this matter. 

 
 

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that he has a right to legal counsel and has 
selected Larry King, Esq. and/or Karen Berhow, Esq. to represent him in this matter.  The 
Employee acknowledges and agrees that he has sought guidance and counsel from said attorneys 
in regard to his legal rights and in entering this settlement agreement and that his chosen legal 
counsel are entitled to an attorney fee as set by statute and reimbursement of reasonable costs in 
representation of the Employee.  The Employee also acknowledges and agrees that he has a right 
to a trial of his workers’ compensation claim, and after consideration of his right to trial and 
consultation with his chosen legal representation, he has voluntarily waived the same in order to 
participate in this settlement.  

 
The parties agree and stipulate that on or about June 9, 2020, June 15, 2020, and/or June 22, 
2020, Employee was employed by the Employer as a firefighter.  As to such employment, the 
parties were subject to and governed by the Workers’ Compensation Act of Alabama, as last 
amended.  On the aforesaid date, Employee alleges he sustained chest pain 1 ½ months earlier 
and now was scheduled for cardiac bypass surgery.  The Employee contends that his Employer 
was notified of his chest pain at the time the event(s) occurred.  The Employer contests notice of 
any claimed on-the-job accidental, non-accidental or occupational illness or disease and 
generally denies all liability with respect to this claim.  These are disputed claims. Regarding 
past, unauthorized medical treatment and any and all future treatment (including treatment that 
would otherwise be authorized), the parties have a dispute. The Employee asserts that certain 
past, unauthorized treatment and future medical treatment may be compensable under the Act. 
The Employer denies the Employee's claims and asserts that any and all past, unauthorized 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



treatment and any and all future medical treatment would not be compensable under the Act. The 
parties jointly stipulate and agree as a part of this settlement that any and all past, unauthorized 
medical treatment and any and all future medical treatment received by the Employee would not 
be compensable treatment under the Workers' Compensation Act of Alabama, as amended. 
Accordingly, any and all past, present and future medical benefits are CLOSED. 

 
The Employee was seen at by his primary physician, Dr. Brian Wells on July 7, 2020 at 

which time he reported chest discomfort not associated with exercise. Ultimately he was referred 
to Alabama Cardiovascular and then on September 14, 2020 underwent surgery, four coronary 
artery bypass grafting procedures, performed by Dr. John Casterline at Grandview Medical 
Center.  The Employer contends that all medical treatment rendered to the Employee was 
unauthorized, that none of the Employee’s medical conditions arise out of and in the course of 
his employment, that the Employee’s medical condition is not caused or aggravated by his 
employment, and that the Employer is not liable for payment of workers’ compensation medical 
benefits to these medical providers or on the Employee’s behalf.  The parties stipulate, and this 
Ombudsman determines based upon that stipulation and the direct questions to the Employee, 
Employer, and/or their representative that the Employee’s present medical condition is not 
compensable under Alabama’s Workers’ Compensation Act, and no workers’ compensation 
benefits are due to be paid by the Employer to or on behalf of the Employee.  The parties further 
stipulate, and this Ombudsman determines based upon that stipulation and the direct questions to 
the Employee, Employer, and/or their representative that the employee has reached maximum 
medical improvement (MMI) with respect to his current medical condition.  

 
At the time of the alleged accident, non-accidental injury, and/or disease, the Employee 

average weekly wage was approximately $XXXX with a corresponding maximum compensation 
rate of $XXXX. The Employer has paid no indemnity or medical benefits to or on behalf of the 
Employee. The Parties stipulate that the Employee’s time away from work for the medical 
treatment reflected herein totaled 840 hours.   

 
The Employee understands that this settlement will be paid in a lump sum and that the 

Employee's attorney is to receive a 15% attorney fee of the lump sum, in addition to 
reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred in the prosecution of this matter.  Said lump 
sum payment, after reduction of attorney fees and expenses incurred, leaves a balance of 
$11,975.60 to be paid to Employee. The amount to be paid under this settlement shall be paid 
without commutation of interest and shall represent the compromise agreement that the 
Employee is 49 years of age, and has a life expectancy of 32.16 years, or 1,676.8224 weeks 
forward from the date of this agreement and that the settlement herein reached represents the 
payment of, to wit: $37.14 per week over the life expectancy of the Employee. The parties 
jointly stipulate that they have adequately considered Medicare's interest. 

 
The Employee represents, stipulates and warrants that he has entered into this agreement 

voluntarily and on his own free will, and has not been influenced, coerced or pressured by 
anyone in reaching this settlement. The Employee acknowledges and affirms that he has been 
informed that he does not have to accept this settlement. The Employee further acknowledges 
that he has read the settlement documents or had the same read to him in his native tongue, has 
had sufficient opportunity to consult with his chosen legal counsel about same, and fully 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



understands the terms and conditions and has signed them voluntarily.  The Employee represents 
that this settlement is in the Employee’s best interest, and by execution of this agreement after 
examination of the Employee and approval of this settlement, the below signed Ombudsman 
agrees. 

 
 
 

 
Settlement Document – The parties do not intend to submit this settlement to the court for 
approval.  
 
Dated the   th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
             
Employee,      Claims Representative 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO 
 
 
             
Attorney for Employee    Attorney for Employer 
KAREN BERHOW     JONATHAN BERRYHILL 
 
 
             
Employer      Ombudsman, Ted Roose 

 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



STATE OF ALABAMA 
Workers’ Compensation Division 

Department of Labor 
Montgomery, Alabama 36131 

 
CHRISTOPHER MARENO,  Employee  Social Security No.:  xxx-xx-1089 
    
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS,  Employer  Date of Injury:    June 9, 2020 
           June 15, 2020 
           June 22, 2020 
           
Jefferson County, Alabama  
 
     

AFFIDAVIT 
 
 I acknowledge that I have the right to be represented by counsel, and the right to have any 
settlement of my claim reviewed by a court of competent jurisdiction at any time within 60 days 
after the date of the settlement, and at the end of 60 days it shall be final and irrevocable. I have 
had the opportunity to consult with legal counsel of my own choosing regarding these rights and 
fully understand my rights to have this settlement reviewed by a court of competent jurisdiction 
and with this understanding, cognizant of my rights, whereby in exchange for accepting the lump 
sum payment of $15,000, I hereby waive the right to have this settlement reviewed and 
understand that the settlement shall be final and irrevocable as of the date below. 
 
Dated the   th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
at Birmingham, Alabama         ___________________________________ 

City/State           Employee, CHRISTOPHER MARENO 
         

 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
On this   th day of September, 2022, before me, a Notary Public within and for said County and 
State, personally appeared CHRISTOPHER MARENO, to me known to be identical person 
described in, and who executed the foregoing instrument as employee, and acknowledged that 
the same is true, and that after reading the same, or having the same read to him, and with a full 
understanding of the terms and the effect thereof, he executed the same as his free act and deed 
and for the uses and purposes therein expressed. 
 
 
             
      Notary Public, State at Large 

My Commission Expires:     

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3129



Ordinance No. 3130 
Page 1 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3130 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE TERMS, PROVISIONS, 
CONDITIONS AND SUBSTANCE OF SIX (6) DIFFERENT TEMPLATE 
CONTRACTS TO BE EXECUTED AND DELIVERED BY CITIZENS 
WHO RENT FACILITIES IN THE NEW CIVIC CENTER AND 
VENDORS AND TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER AND 
DIRECTOR OF PARKS AND LEISURE SERVICES TO SIGN THE SAID 
TEMPLATE CONTRACTS FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 3130 is considered, approved, enacted and adopted by 

the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 10th day of October, 2022. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, authorizes municipalities to contract 

and be contracted with; and 

 WHEREAS, all contracts by and between a municipality and any person, firm, 

corporation or other legal entity must be approved by the City Council (Van Antwerp v. City of 

Mobile, 217 Ala. 201 (1928); and Town of Boligee v. Greene County, 77 So.3d 1166 (2011), by 

the approval of an ordinance or resolution; and 

 WHEREAS, all contracts entered into by a municipality are required to be signed by the 

City Manager (Title 11-43-21(7), Code of Alabama, 1975) and by the Mayor (Title 11-43-83, 

Code of Alabama, 1975); and 

 WHEREAS, municipalities in Alabama have the legal authority to create a Park and 

Recreation Board by virtue of Title 11-86-1, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975; and 

 WHEREAS, if a municipality creates a Park and Recreation Board (“Board”), then in 

such event the Board shall be responsible for the direction, supervision and promotion of 

recreation programs and shall have control over all lands, buildings, equipment and other 

facilities assigned for recreation purposes pursuant to the authority of Title 11-86-3, Code of 

Alabama, 1975; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama created a Park and 

Recreation Board on December 7, 1981 by the approval and adoption of Ordinance Number 597; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council amended Ordinance Number 597 on May 27, 2009 with 

the enactment of Ordinance Number 2258; and 



Ordinance No. 3130 
Page 2 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance Number 2258 reads in pertinent part as follows: 

 “SECTION SIX: POWERS AND DUTIES:  The Board 
shall be responsible for the direction, supervision and promotion 
of such recreational programs as will contribute to the general 
welfare of the residents of the county or municipality.  The Board 
shall have control over all lands, buildings, equipment and other 
facilities assigned for recreational purposes to the board by the 
municipal governing body.”; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Alabama law at Title 11-40-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, authorizes 

municipalities to acquire property by gift, devise or appropriation; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-86-5, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that a municipal governing 

body may acquire lands, buildings and facilities for recreational purposes by means of purchase, 

lease, loan, gift or condemnation procedure and shall have power to accept financial and other 

aid and grants for recreational purposes from any public or private agency; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-19, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that the City Council may 

establish, lay out and improve public grounds, parks and boulevards and regulate the same and 

may provide music and other exhibitions for the amusement of the inhabitants; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-211, Code of Alabama, 1975, authorizes a municipality in 

Alabama to acquire or lease lands, buildings, facilities and improvements suitable for public 

parks, playgrounds, athletic and other recreational uses; and 

 WHEREAS, Title 11-47-210.1, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides that all municipalities 

in Alabama have the power to acquire, operate, manage and control parks, playgrounds and other 

recreational and athletic facilities; and 

 WHEREAS,  On May 31, 2017, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) purchased 

from Store Capital Acquisitions, LLC the real estate and improvements commonly referred to as 

“the Gold’s Gym property” (“property”), which said property is more particularly described as 

follows: 

Lot 2 and Lot 3, according to the Survey of CVS Vestavia, as 
recorded in Map Book 213, Page 31, in the Probate Office of 
Jefferson County, Alabama. 

 
 Title is derived by that certain deed dated May 31, 2017 filed in the office of the Judge 

of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on June 8, 2017 and recorded at Instrument 

#2017057813, pages 1-5; and 



Ordinance No. 3130 
Page 3 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, as part of the Community Spaces Project, constructed a new Civic 

Center consisting of approximately 100,000 square feet, for the purpose of use by citizens of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama for wedding receptions, anniversary celebrations and other 

parties, which will promote the health, safety, prosperity, comfort, order and convenience of the 

inhabitants of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney, at the direction of the City Manager and request of the 

Director of Parks and Leisure Services prepared the following template contracts to be used, from 

time to time, in connection with the operation of the new Civic Center: 

  Description      Exhibit Number 

 Caterer Contract       1 
 Vendor Contract for Alcoholic Beverage Services   2 
 Rental Contract       3 
 Vestavia Hills Civic Center Rental Agreement   4 
 Vestavia Hills Parks and Pavilion Rental Agreement   5 
 New Merkle House Facility Agreement    6; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby approves the terms, provisions and conditions of 

all six (6) of the template contracts described above and marked as Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds and determines that it will save time and trouble, be 

expedient and convenient and promote the public interest to authorize and direct the City 

Manager and Director of Parks and Leisure Services to execute and deliver the said six (6) 

template contracts described above for and on behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, from time to 

time, when citizens wish to utilize the Civic Center facilities; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE:  RECITALS.  The Recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3130 by reference as though set out fully herein. 

SECTION TWO: EXHIBITS.  The following Exhibits are attached hereto and 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3130 by reference as though set out fully herein: 

Description      Exhibit Number 

 Caterer Contract       1 
 Vendor Contract for Alcoholic Beverage Services   2 
 Rental Contract       3 
 Vestavia Hills Civic Center Rental Agreement   4 



Ordinance No. 3130 
Page 4 

 
 
 Vestavia Hills Parks and Pavilion Rental Agreement   5 
 New Merkle House Facility Agreement    6  
 

SECTION THREE: APPROVAL OF CONTRACTS.  The City Council hereby 

approves the terms, provisions, conditions and substance of the six (6) template contracts 

described in Section Two above. 

SECTION FOUR: AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION AND 

DELIVERY.  The City Manager and Director of Parks and Leisure Services are hereby 

authorized to execute and deliver the six (6) template contracts designated as Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 

5 and 6, from time to time, when citizens wish to utilize facilities at the Civic Center for and on 

behalf of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

SECTION FIVE:  BOTH SIGNATURES REQUIRED.  The signatures of both the 

City Manager and Director of Parks and Leisure Services are necessary to bind the City to the 

terms, provisions, conditions and substance of the six (6) template contracts designated as 

Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6. 

SECTION SIX: ARTICLE AND SECTION HEADINGS.  The article and section 

headings and captions contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be 

considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

SECTION SEVEN: SEVERABILITY.  If any part, section or subdivision of this 

Ordinance Number 3130 shall be held unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding 

shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this ordinance, which shall 

continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

SECTION EIGHT: POSTING OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 3130:  If the City 

Council approves, enacts and adopts Ordinance Number 3130, as written or as amended, then in 

such event, said ordinance shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City as required 

by Title 11-45-8(b)(1), Code of Alabama, 1975. 

SECTION NINE: EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 3130.  This 

Ordinance Number 3130 shall become effective five (5) days after posting in accordance with 

Title 11-45-8(b), Code of Alabama, 1975.  

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 10th day of October, 

2022. 

 
 



Ordinance No. 3130 
Page 5 

 
 
      CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
 
 
      By __________________________________ 
       Ashley C. Curry 

Mayor 
ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify 
that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 3130 is a true and correct copy 
of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 
_______ day of October, 2022 as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills New Merkle House, Vestavia 
Hills Civic Center and Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest this the _______ day of October, 
2022. 
 
 
    
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 1 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 2 - Ordinance No. 3130



Exhibit 3 - Ordinance No. 3130



 
 
       
 
 
 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 
PARKS AND LEISURE SERVICES 

RENTAL CONTRACT  
 
 
 

DATE: ____________________ 

LESSEE:  _____________________________RESIDENT: ______ NON-RESIDENT: ______ 

ORGANIZATION NAME (If applicable): ___________________________________________ 

ADDRESS: ____________________________ EMAIL ADDRESS: ______________________ 

CITY/STATE/ZIP: _____________________________________________________________ 

CONTACT (If different from above): __________________________CELL: _______________ 

By the execution of this contract, the Lessee accepts the terms listed in the facility agreement for 
facility rental and affirms that the details below and in the facility agreement, are correct.      
 
DATE REQUESTED: _____________________ NUMBER OF GUESTS: ______________ 

FACILITY TO RESERVE: _______________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE: ____________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: ________________ TIME: _______________TOTAL FEE: ______________________ 

SPECIAL REQUESTS: __________________________________________________________ 

LESSEE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: _________________________________________ 

ACCEPTED BY:  

___________________________________ 
Printed Name  
 
___________________________________     _______________ 
Signature          Date  
 
___________________________________ 
Parks & Leisure Services Designated Signee 
 

1090 Montgomery Highway Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216 
205-978-0166 

Exhibit 4 - Ordinance No. 3130



VESTAVIA HILLS PARKS AND PAVILION 
FACILITY AGREEMENT 

1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY  
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35216 

205-978-0166 
 

GENERAL RULES AND INFORMATION 
 
RESERVATIONS 

A. Reservations may be made Monday – Friday, 8:30-4:30 by calling the Civic Center office 
or through an online application.  The application may be completed at VHAL.org under 
“Reserve a Space” in the Parks and Recreation section. 

B. Deposit:  A 50% deposit is due at the time of rental.  Full payment is due 15 days before 
arrival.   

C. Hours of Operation: All parks and trails open at 6:30 am to Sunset, unless otherwise 
stated.   

  
ACCESSIBILITY  
The Vestavia Hills Parks is committed to the needs of individuals with disabilities.  The Parks 
are accessible to disabled patrons as required by the ADA and applicable regulations.  
 
ALCOHOL 
Alcoholic Beverages are strictly prohibited at all parks and pavilions.  The presence of alcohol 
will result in immediate cancellation.  
 
ANIMALS  
Dogs and cats are permitted in all parks. Pets shall be on a leash and under control of the owner 
at all times. Any solid excretion matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area.  
Farm animals are not allowed.  
 
CANCELLATION 
Cancellation of the event less than 15 calendar days before the event shall result in a 25% 
forfeiture of the deposit. Cancellation of the event 15 calendar days prior to the event, shall result 
in a full refund minus a $10.00 processing fee.  
 
CLEAN UP AND DAMAGES 
Trash receptacles are provided in the parks. We ask that you place all trash in the receptacles 
provided.  Please carry with you all items brought in to the park (Ex: decorations, flowers, etc.) 
Additional charges will be incurred for non-compliance. 
 
The lessee is responsible for the total cost of replacement and /or repairs for damages caused by 
the Lessee, attendees, agents, or employees of the Lessee. Lessee will be required to leave a valid 
credit card and authorization form on file as a security deposit for any damages.  The Lessee will 
be notified of any damages.  
 

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



 
 
 
CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR 
The lessee is responsible for the conduct of their participants, workers and guests.  All rules and 
regulations of the Parks must be followed at all times.  The Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation 
reserves the right to require any lessee, guest, attendee or other person to vacate the premises, at 
its sole discretion, in the event of any behavior or conduct (including excessive noise) which is 
inconsistent with the Park rules, regulations or policies.  
 
DEPOSIT 
A 50% deposit and a credit card are due at the time the execution of the agreement. The credit 
card will be held on file for any damages.   The balance is due 15 calendar days before the event.   
If the event is within 15 days, the full balance is due at the time of the reservation.  The deposit 
and balance may be paid by check, cash or by credit card. 
 
DECORATIONS  
The use of tape, staples, stick pins or Velcro are strictly prohibited.  The use of confetti, bird 
seed, or similar items is prohibited.   No open flame is permitted in the pavilion. Birthday cake 
candles are the exception.  
 
FOOD AND BEVERAGE 
Food and non-alcoholic beverages are allowed in all parks.   Food Trucks are allowed, but must 
be pre-approved by the City. Civic Center Staff will give you contact information for Food Truck 
Approval. 
 
HOURS 
All parks and trails are open at 6:30 am till Sunset.  
 
INCLEMENT WEATHER 
Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation reserves the right to cancel the reservation in the event of 
inclement weather.  The Civic Center office will be happy to reschedule the event or issue a full 
refund.  
 
INDEMNITY 
 The Lessee does hereby indemnify and agree to hold harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, its Mayor, members of the City Council, the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board 
and its individual members, City Manager, City Clerk, agents, servants, employees and/or any one 
or more of any thereof against any claim, demand, loss, cost, damage, suits, actions, causes of 
action, payments, claims or other expenses resulting in or caused by personal injuries, death or 
property loss or damage from any occurrence or incident while in, on or about the leased premises 
during the rental term described above; provided, however, the undersigned does not indemnify 
the City of Vestavia Hills or any of its representatives for anything attributed to the willful and/or 
wrongful act of the City or its duly authorized agents or representatives.  This indemnification 
shall extend to all claims, damages, losses and expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or 
neighboring property, or persons injured thereon, that arise out of, relate to, or result from activities 

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



of the lessee and/or its guests.  The undersigned expressly agrees and acknowledges that the rental 
and damage deposit charged by the City to the undersigned represents and constitutes a valid 
consideration for the execution of this indemnity agreement. 
 
LOSS/THEFT 
Attendees are solely responsible for safeguarding of any valuables.  The Vestavia Hills Park and 
Recreation Board will not be responsible for any loss.   
 
PARKS AND PAVILIONS AMENITIES      
    

1. Altadena Park   2501 Lakeland Trail, 35243 
 66-acre park (Scheduled updates will begin in 2023) 
 Opens at 6:30 am and closes at sunset 
 Parking is restricted to designated areas.  
 No golf carts, go-carts, motorcycles, four-wheelers, three-wheelers or any other 

type of off -road vehicle is permitted in the park.  
 Pets are allowed on a leash and under control at all times. Any solid excretion 

matter from said pet must be picked up from any surface area. 
 Hitting golf balls is prohibited.  
 Reservations are not needed.  

 
2. Boulder Canyon Nature Trail    1289 Montgomery Highway, 35216 

 Trail begins at the Library in the Forest, features a nature trail with bridge and a 
waterfall.  

 Reservations are not needed.  
 

3.  Byrd Park    2109 Tyson Drive, 35216 
 Walking track 
 Playground 
 Picnic Area  
 Reservations not required. 

 
4. Cahaba Heights Park    4401 Dolly Ridge Road, 35243 

 Open Green Space  
 Turfed baseball fields 
 Enclosed play ground 
 Dog Park  
 Reservations are not available.  

 
5.  Liberty Park Sports Complex     4700 Sicard Hollow Road, 35242 

 Two playgrounds 
 Soccer fields 
 Softball fields 
 Reservations are not available.   

 

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



6. McCallum Park    3332 Rosemary Lane, 35216 
 Picnic tables with Pavilions 
 Grills to cook over open flame (personal grills not allowed) 
 Trails  
 Restrooms   
 The park cannot accommodate groups larger than 50. 
 Reservations are required.  

 
7.  Meadowlawn Park    4041 Dolly Ridge Road, 35243 

 Pavilion  
 Walking Trail 
 Playground 
 No restroom facilities.  
 Reservations are required 

 
8. Miracle League Field    2521 Waldridge Road, 35216 

 The Miracle League field removes the barriers for children with mental and 
physical disabilities.   

 Custom rubberized fields 
 Located in Wald Park  
 No cleats allowed 
 Reservations are required 

 
9.  Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex (SHAC) 4851 Sicard Hollow Road, 35242 

A. Pickleball/Futsal Courts:  
 3 Pickleball/Futsal Courts for open play between 7:00am – 10:00pm 
 Courts are a first come, first serve basis.  
 Tennis shoes must be worn.  
 Lights may be turned on by pushing button located outside the court.  
 Do not remove Futsal or Pickleball nets.  If they need removing, please 

contact Park & Rec at 205-978-0166 
 No Private or Professional lessons are permitted without the approval of Park 

& Rec Staff. 
 Water is the beverage of choice. No other drinks allowed on courts.  
 No pets allowed, except service pets.  
 No bicycles, skate boards/hoverboards, skates or roller blades allowed.  
 Children under 12 must be accompanied by an adult.   

 
B.  Multipurpose Fields   

 Turf multi-purpose fields 
 Playground  
 Registrations are not available 

 
 
 

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



C.   Splash Pad 
 Open 9:00 am till Sunset, May 1 through September 30 
 Water sprays are controlled by a button on the black stand.  Once activated it 

will run 15 minutes.  It will then need to be pushed again for water to come 
on.   

 ADA accessible play ground with features for Autistic Children.  
 Adult fitness stations  
 Pavilion can be rented includes 6 picnic tables and a small room for serving. 
 Restrooms  
 Splash Pad cannot be rented.  Pavilion can be rented.  

 
C. Walking Trails  

 Blue Cross Blue Shield sponsored the trail system.  
 Approximately 1.3 miles long. 
 Connects the athletic fields.  

 
D. Dog Washing Station 

 Located near the Splash Pad  
 Cost of $10.00 for usage 

 
10.  Wald Park    2521 Waldridge Road, 35216 

A. Ball fields  
 3 Ball fields and 1 Miracle league field  
 Reservations are not available. 

 
B.  Park 

 Picnic Tables  
 Restrooms 
 Walking Track 
 2 Playgrounds  
 Open green space  
 Amphitheater (Not rented out at this time) 
 Reservations are not available.  

 
PARKING  
Each park and pavilion have parking available for you use.  Vehicles must be parked in 
designated parking areas. Charging for parking at any event is not permitted. 
 
SMOKING 
Vestavia Hills is a smoke-free city.   Any smoking is limited to the parking lot.. 
 
TAX EXEMPTION 
For tax exemption, you must have a Tax ID and be able to provide us a copy. 
 
 

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



TEEN EVENTS 
 Teen Events are defined as events for Teenagers between the ages of 13-19. 
 One parent per every 25 teenagers, must be present for the duration of the event.  
 If the event has over 75 teenagers, two police officers are required for duration of the 

event.  All police will be ordered by the Civic Center. The cost is $50 per hour with a 
minimum of four (4) hours.  Every hour over 4 will be charged at $50 per hour.   No 
outside security will be allowed. This is to paid at rental time.  

Exhibit 5 - Ordinance No. 3130



NEW MERKLE HOUSE 
FACILITY AGREEMENT 

2150 HOLLIS CROSSINGS  
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 35243 

205-967-5977 
 
 

GENERAL RULES AND INFORMATION 
 
RESERVATIONS 

A. Reservations may be made Monday – Friday, 9:00-4:00 by calling The New Merkle 
House or through an online application. The application may be completed at VHAL.org 
under “Reserve a Space” in the Parks and Recreation section.   

B. Deposit:  A 50% deposit is due at the time of rental.  Full payment is due 15 days before 
the event date.   A credit card form is due at the time of the execution of the agreement 
and held on file for any damages.  

C. Hours for Rental: Saturday – 8:00AM -8:00PM 
D. Rental time includes your setup, decorating, event, and clean up.  
E. Only residents may rent this facility.   

 
ACCESSIBILITY  
The New Merkle House is committed to the needs of individuals with disabilities.  The New 
Merkle House is accessible to disabled patrons as required by the ADA and applicable 
regulations.  
 
ANIMALS  
Animals or pets are not permitted in The New Merkle House, with the exception of service 
animals, which may accompany individuals with disabilities in all areas of the facility.  
 
BANDS/DJS 
All bands and DJ’s must provide their own equipment and adhere to the rules of the facility. 
Each event space is equipped with power.  Please provide Event Manager with a copy of the 
contract with the band or DJ two weeks prior to the commencement of the event.   
 
CANCELLATION 
Cancellation of the event less than 30 calendar days before the event date shall result in a 25% 
forfeiture of the deposit. Cancellation of the event before 30 calendar days or more prior to the 
event, shall result in a full refund minus a $10.00 processing fee.  
 
CAPACITY   
Total capacity is 127 people.  If your event exceeds the building capacity, you will be notified 
and asked to reduce the number of attendees.  Failure to comply will result in the event being 
closed down.   
 
 

Exhibit 6 - Ordinance No. 3130



 
 
CLEAN UP AND DAMAGES 
The New Merkle House staff will remove trash and clean the floors at the conclusion of the 
event.  We ask that you place all trash in the receptacles provided.  Please remove from the New 
Merkle House all items brought into the facility at the conclusion of the event, (Ex: decorations, 
linens, flowers, etc.). Additional charges will be incurred for non-compliance. 
 
The Lessee is responsible for the total cost of replacement and/or repairs for damages caused by 
the Lessee, attendees, agents, or employees of the Lessee. Lessee will be required to leave a valid 
credit card and authorization form on file as a security deposit for any damages.  The Lessee will 
be notified of any damages before the credit card is charged.  
 
CONDUCT AND BEHAVIOR 
The Lessee is responsible for the conduct of their participants, workers and guests.  All rules and 
regulations of The New Merkle House must be followed at all times.  The New Merkle House 
reserves the right to require any Lessee, guest, attendee or other person to vacate the premises, at 
its sole discretion, in the event of any behavior or conduct (including excessive noise) which is 
inconsistent with The New Merkle House rules, regulations or policies.  
 
DEPOSIT 
A 50% deposit and a credit card are due at the time of execution of the agreement. The credit 
card will be held on file for any damages.  The remaining unpaid balance is due 15 calendar days 
before the event.   If the execution of the agreement is within 30 calendar days of the event, the 
full balance is due at the time of the reservation.  The deposit and balance may be paid by check, 
cash or by credit card. 
 
DECORATIONS 
The use of tape, staples, stick pins or velcro on any wall or door or hung from the ceiling is 
strictly prohibited.  The use of confetti, bird seed, rice or similar items is prohibited.  Candles 
must be flameless.  Your Event Manager will be able to offer acceptable alternatives.   
 
EXHIBITS  
Floor plans must be provided to the Event Manager 30 days before the event.   
 
FIRST AID/EMERGENCY SERVICES 
Fire Codes will be adhered to in all event spaces.  All events are subject to an inspection and 
approval of the Fire Marshall. The use of fog machines, untreated hay, straw, cotton bales or any 
other flammable decoration is prohibited. All utility panels, fire hose cabinets, standpipes, fire 
extinguishers and fire alarms must remain visible and accessible at all times. 
 
FOOD  
The New Merkle House does not have a kitchen for private use.  The New Merkle House staff 
will provide ice.  Please provide a container. Food and non-alcoholic beverages may be brought 
into the facility.   
 

Exhibit 6 - Ordinance No. 3130



INDEMITY 
The Lessee does hereby indemnify and agree to hold harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
its Mayor, members of the City Council, the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Board and its 
individual members, City Manager, City Clerk, agents, servants, employees and/or any one or 
more of any thereof against any claim, demand, loss, cost, damage, suits, actions, causes of action, 
payments, claims or other expenses resulting in or caused by personal injuries, death or property 
loss or damage from any occurrence or incident while in, on or about the leased premises during 
the rental term described above; provided, however, the undersigned does not indemnify the City 
of Vestavia Hills or any of its representatives for anything attributed to the willful and/or wrongful 
act of the City or its duly authorized agents or representatives.  This indemnification shall extend 
to all claims, damages, losses and expenses for injury or damage to adjacent or neighboring 
property, or persons injured thereon, that arise out of, relate to, or result from activities of the lessee 
and/or its guests.  The undersigned expressly agrees and acknowledges that the rental and damage 
deposit charged by the City to the undersigned represents and constitutes a valid consideration for 
the execution of this indemnity agreement. 
 
LINENS 
Linens are not provided.   
 
LOSS/THEFT 
The New Merkle House does not provide security for personal property or valuables.  Attendees 
are solely responsible for safeguarding any valuables.  The New Merkle House will not be 
responsible for any loss.   
 
PARKING  
The New Merkle House has approximately 100+ parking spaces. These parking spaces are 
shared with Cahaba Heights Park.   There are no parking fees.   
 
RATES 
The Rate is $125.00 per hour with a minimum of 2 hours.  Rental time includes your setup, 
decorating, event, and clean up.  
 
SMOKING 
The New Merkle House is a smoke-free facility.  Smoking is not permitted in the facility 
including vapor cigarettes.  Smoking is allowed outside the facility in the parking lot.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
SETUP 
The table and chair setup for the room rented must be received by the facility 14 days in advance 
of the event.  If it is not received, $50.00 will be deducted from your deposit.  The New Merkle 
House will provide one setup per day. 

Exhibit 6 - Ordinance No. 3130



Strict adherence with all approved and documented setup plans, starting and end times is 
required.  Additional charges will be imposed at the rate of $100 per every half hour that extends 
beyond the scheduled time.  Fire codes will be adhered to in all event spaces.  Modification to a 
room setup will result in additional charges.  
 
TAX EXEMPTION 
For tax exemption, Lessee must have a Tax ID and be able to provide New Merkle House a 
copy. 
 
TEEN EVENTS 

 Teen Events are defined as events for Teenagers between the ages of 13-19. 
 One parent per every 25 teenagers, must be present for the duration of the event.  
 If the event has over 75 teenagers, two police officers are required for duration of the 

event.  All police will be secured by the Event Manager.  The cost is $50 per hour with a 
minimum of four (4) hours.  Every hour over 4 will be charged at $50 per hour.   No 
outside security will be allowed. This is to be paid The New Merkle House. 

 The lessee is responsible for the total cost of replacement and /or repairs for damages 
caused by the Lessee, attendees, agents, or employees of the Lessee. Lessee shall leave a 
valid credit card and authorization form on file as a security deposit for any damages.  
The Lessee will be notified of any damages before the credit card is charged.   
 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 

Exhibit 6 - Ordinance No. 3130


	2022_0926CC_A
	Proclamation Down Syndrome Aware Day 2021
	2022_0912CC_work session
	2022_0912CC_M
	Resolution 5406
	Resolution 5407
	Ordinance 3111
	Ordinance 3112
	Ordinance 3113
	Ordinance 3114
	Ordinance 3115
	Ordinance 3116
	Ordinance 3121
	Ordinance 3122
	Ordinance 3123
	Resolution 5412
	Resolution 5413
	Ordinance 3126
	Ordinance 3127
	Ordinance 3128
	Ordinance 3129
	Ordinance 3130



